
SACRE
3.45 pm TUESDAY, 24TH OCTOBER, 2017

CONFERENCE ROOM 1
This Agenda has been prepared by the 

Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring information should 
contact the department on (01685 725284) or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA
1. Welcome 

2. Re-affirm appointment of Chair 

3. Re-affirm appointment of Vice Chair 

4. Apologies for absence 

5. Declaration of Interests 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

6. Minutes of the last meeting (including Schedule of 
Meetings 2017-18) 

1 - 4

7. Matters Arising 

8. Membership Update (See Annual Report) 5 - 6

9. SACRE Annual Report 2016-17 7 - 36

10. SACRE Development Plan 2015-2018:  Progress 
Report (Annual Report attached) 

11. Inspection Report Analysis:  Autumn 2016 - 
Summer 2017 

37 - 42

12. RE and the National Curriculum Update:  Welsh 
Government Newsletter 

43 - 44

13. GCSE Religious Studies:  Update 

14. Estyn Thematic Review of RE:  Update 

15. WASACRE: 

 Feedback from AGM at Wrexham on 7th 
July 2017 (minutes attached).

 Representation at next meeting in Bridgend 
on Friday, 10th November 2017.

 Dates of future WASACRE Meetings.

45 - 52

16. Holocaust Memorial Day 2018 53 - 56

17. Visits and Visitors 57 - 74

18. Inter Faith Network Bulletin 75 - 104

19. Future RE News Bulletin and Information 
Briefings:  Update 

20. Correspondence 

21. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor E Galsworthy (Chair)

Councillors D Hughes and I Thomas

A  Jones, S Bernard Henderson, L McCarthy, H Price, 
J Jones, K Thomas, M Carrington, L Draper, D O'Keefe, 
A Pitt, A Star, Rev. M Prevett, J Brill and P Webber

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

SACRE MEETING
TUESDAY, 4TH JULY, 2017

PRESENT: Councillor E Galsworthy (In the Chair)

Councillors:
D Hughes and I Thomas

Professional Associations:
S Bernard Henderson

Faith Communities:
D O'Keefe, A Star and Rev. M Prevett 

Local Authority Representatives:
Vicky Thomas and Sarah Bowen

Karen Vokes (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

50  Election of 
Chairperson

RESOLVED that:

Councillor E Galsworthy be formally re-elected as Chair. 

51  Election of Vice 
Chairperson

RESOLVED that:

Councillor D Hughes be elected as Vice Chairman.  

52  Welcome to new 
Members including an 
outline of the roles and 
responsibilities of 
SACRE

In order for new members to understand the remit of the 
SACRE function, Vicky Thomas outlined the composition, 
role and the responsibilities of the Local Authority in respect 
of this Committee.  

53  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Lee-anne McCarthy, 
Katy Thomas, Justine Jones and Mark Carrington. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



54  Declaration of Interests No declarations of interest were made.

55  Minutes of previous 
meeting held on 7th 
March 2017 at 
Trelewis Primary 
School

RESOLVED that:

The minutes of the meeting held on 7th March 2017 at 
Trelewis Primary School were submitted and approved.

56  Matters Arising In relation to the Holocaust Memorial Day in January 2017, 
Sarah Bowen advised that she had shared details with the 
Schools. 

Vicky Thomas advised that the following had been 
forwarded to Schools as agreed in the previous meeting:

 Foundation Stage Flyers.
 Analysis of examination results for 2016.
 KS3 Levels Data 2015 and 2016.
 Dates of the Network Meetings and their Lead 

Practitioners for GCSE contact details. 

57  Schedule of meetings 
2017/2018

Vicky Thomas advised the Committee that she will be 
finishing her work with Merthyr SACRE and today will be 
her last meeting.

She advised that Paula Webber, who is the current 
secretary of WASACRE, will be working with Merthyr Tydfil 
SACRE with effect from the Autumn meeting.

Members agreed that the next meeting will be on Tuesday, 
24th October 2017 at 3.45 pm at the Civic Centre.   Due to 
Paula Webber’s new appointment as Independent RE 
Consultant of SACRE, the dates of the March and June 
2018 meetings will be confirmed in the next meeting. 

58  Revised Criteria for 
GCSE and GCE 
Specifications:  Update

Vicky Thomas gave an update on the revised criteria for RS 
specifications and advised the Committee of the 2 
Curriculum Lead Practitioners for RE to provide support for 
non-core WJEC GCSE subjects.

RESOLVED that:

The Committee notes the developments relating to the 
support for schools with the revised specifications for 
GCSE.

59  National Curriculum 
Review and 
Assessment:  Update

Sarah Bowen left the meeting at 4.15 pm. 

Vicky Thomas advised Committee on the national 
curriculum review and outlined the timeline and process 
followed. 

She gave a detailed update on the meetings held with 
Welsh Government in Spring Term 2017.

RESOLVED that:

The Committee notes the contents of the report. 
Further updates will be brought back to future meetings.

Page 2



60  Estyn Update (Oral 
Update)

Vicky Thomas referred to the meeting with Estyn on the 5th 
June 2017 and gave an update on the thematic review of 
religious education at KS2-KS3 to be conducted in the 
autumn term 2017 and the new Estyn Inspection 
Framework introduced from September 2017 and its 
implications for RE and SMSC.  She also referred to the 
areas of concern raised with Estyn in relation to current 
inspection of RE (meeting statutory requirements according 
to an agreed syllabus for Religious Education), KS4 RE.

RESOLVED that:

Further updates will be brought back to the Committee 
when required.  

61  WASACRE Issues: Feedback on Spring Meeting on 3rd March 2017

Vicky Thomas led Committee in detail through the minutes 
of the WASACRE meeting at Usk, Monmouthshire on the 
3rd March 2017.

Representation at the Summer Meeting on 7th July 2017

Vicky Thomas and the Chair, Councillor Ernie Galsworthy, 
confirmed that they will be attending the WASACRE 
meeting in Wrexham on the 7th July 2017.

Executive Voting for the period 2017

Vicky Thomas advised there are two nominations for two 
positions on the WASACRE Executive Committee.    The 
Committee took a vote and agreed to support both 
nominations, namely Alison Lewis (Swansea SACRE) and 
Gill Vaisey (Monmouthshire SACRE). They also agreed to 
support the nomination of Gill Vaisey in the position of Vice 
Chair.  

Vicky Thomas advised that she and Councillor Ernie 
Galsworthy have delegated authority to vote at the 
WASACRE meeting and will take this vote on behalf of the 
Merthyr Tydfil SACRE.  

62  Correspondence No correspondence was discussed. 

63  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

On behalf of the Committee, the Chair thanked Vicky 
Thomas for all her contribution and expertise through 
serving on Merthyr Tydfil SACRE and wished her well for 
the future.   

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MEMBERSHIP OF SACRE 2016-2017

Local authority

Councillor Gareth Lewis Local education authority
Councillor Ernie Galsworthy, Local education authority
Councillor Kate Moran Local education authority
Vacancy (x2) Local education authority

From May 2017

Councillor D Hughes Local education authority
Councilllor I Thomas Local education authority

Teacher associations

Amanda Jones RE Teachers’ Association 
Afon Taf High school

Sian Bernard-Henderson/ 
Leanne McCarthy

National Union of Teachers
Cyfartha High School

Vacancy UCAC

Vacancy Secondary Heads Association

Helen Price/Justine Jones NAS/UWT
Trelewis Primary
Twynyrodyn Community School

Katy Thomas Association of College Managers

Mark Carrington, NAHT 
Twynyrodyn Community School  

Lucy Draper Association of Teachers and Lecturers
Pen-y-Dre High School

Religious denominations

Deacon David O’Keefe Roman Catholic Church
Andy Pitt Evangelical Church
Ann Starr Presbyterian Church
Father Mark Prevett Church in Wales
Janine Brill Salvation Army

LA Officers

Sarah Bowen Inclusion Manager
Karen Vokes Clerk to SACRE
Vicky Thomas                         Independent RE Consultant

Page 5

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Annual Report

2016 - 2017

Page 7

Agenda Item 9



2

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Annual Report 2016 - 2017

CONTENTS                   Page

Composition, roles and responsibilities of SACRE 3

Executive summary     5

Summary of advice to the local authority on 8
religious education            

Summary of advice on collective worship 12

Summary of other issues 13

Appendix 1: Membership of SACRE 15

Appendix 2: Record of meetings                                         16

Appendix 3: SACRE development plan 2015 - 2018           17

Appendix 4: Summary of examination results 2014 - 2016 24

Appendix 5: Year 9 teacher assessments 2016                                 25 
             
Appendix 6:  Circulation of the report                                                             26

Appendix 7: Constitution of SACRE  27

Page 8



3

MERTHYR TYDFIL SACRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 – 2017

COMPOSITION, ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF SACRE

COMPOSITION OF SACRE

The membership of the Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education is 
determined by the Education Acts of 1944, 1993 and the Education Reform Act of 
1988. SACRE has three constituent groups, each group being entitled to one vote:

 Christian denominations and other religions and religious denominations;
 associations representing teachers; and
 the local authority (LA).

The members representing each of these groups for 2016 - 2017 are listed in 
Appendix 1.

THE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF SACRE 

The main function of a SACRE is to:

 advise the LA about religious education and collective worship;
 require the authority to review the agreed syllabus;
 consider applications from schools for determinations (to be exempt from the 

requirement that worship be “Christian”);
 publish an annual report on its work; and
 play a part in the local statutory complaints procedure where cases are 

referred to it relating to religious education or collective worship. 

Advice may relate to:

 methods of teaching;
 the choice of teaching materials;
 the provision of teacher training; and
 any other matter relating to religious education and collective worship which 

SACRE considers appropriate.

RECORD OF MEETINGS

Three meetings of SACRE were held in the academic year 2016 - 2017:
 1st November 2016 at Afon Taf High School
 7th March 2017 at Trelewis Community Primary school
 4th July 2017 at the Civic Centre 

A record of the main agenda items discussed during the meetings is to be found in 
Appendix 2. 

Page 9



4

THE PLANNING AND ORGANISATION OF THE WORK OF SACRE

Prior to the commencement of the 2016 - 2017 academic year, SACRE had agreed 
to organise and prioritise its work in the framework of a development plan.

A copy of the development plan 2015 - 2018, including details of progress achieved 
during the year, is included as Appendix 3.

CIRCULATION OF REPORT

Copies of this report have been circulated to the organisations/establishments listed 
in Appendix 6.

Page 10



5

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Summary of the advice given to the LA by SACRE 

RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

Aim: To monitor standards and provision in religious education

Action
.

1. SACRE considers and analyses school inspection reports. If there are any 
issues regarding religious education, such as the non-fulfilment of statutory 
requirements, the LA follows this up. There were three primary schools and 
three secondary schools inspected during the academic year 2015 – 2016.  
Comments were generally positive stating that curriculum and statutory 
requirements were met. There were no issues relating to religious education 
identified in the reports and therefore no follow up action was necessary.

2. SACRE analyses examination results over a three year period and identifies 
trends in performance benchmarked against All Wales and Consortia data. 
SACRE writes to schools after analysing examination results. The letter 
includes congratulations for the good results, where appropriate, and raises 
issues that schools should be addressing as a result of this analysis.  

3. The LA and its SACRE gathers and analyses data regarding key stage 3 
teacher assessment in religious education.  This information is presented to 
SACRE and benchmarked against Consortia data. This information is then 
sent to all secondary schools in the LA.  

4. SACRE wrote to all schools in the local authority reminding them that 
coverage of the programmes of study of the locally agreed syllabus remains a 
statutory requirement whilst the curriculum is under review. It also wrote to 
secondary schools  drawing specific attention to delivery of RE at KS4 and 
informing them that coverage of the Global Citizenship unit alone would not 
be sufficient to cover all aspects of the agreed syllabus KS4 programme of 
study. It asked all schools to confirm that they understood the requirements of 
the agreed syllabus and that they are meeting these statutory requirements in 
their schools.

AGREED SYLLABUS

Aim: To fulfil the legal requirement to review the agreed syllabus for religious 
education

Action
1. In 2008 Merthyr Tydfil SACRE adopted a new agreed syllabus for the 

authority’s schools to be implemented from September 2008. All schools 
received a programme of Inset in summer 2008 and received a package of 
support materials, including schemes of work and electronic Progress in 
Learning files for primary and secondary schools, were issued to schools to 
exemplify the new syllabus. 

Page 11



6

2. In June 2013 Standing Conference endorsed the re-adoption of the Merthyr 
Tydfil agreed syllabus for religious education with an understanding that the 
syllabus would be reviewed once further information is received in relation to 
the assessment and National Curriculum review.

3. Since 2013 and throughout the academic year 2016-2017 SACRE has been 
updated on a termly basis of developments with the national Curriculum 
review and the place of RE within a Humanities curriculum. SACRE are 
awaiting further details from Welsh Government on the shape of RE in the 
curriculum, and advice from WASACRE, before beginning any RE agreed 
syllabus review. 

TEACHING MATERIALS

Aim: To ensure that schools are informed of suitable teaching resources

Action

1. All schools were informed of the 2017 Holocaust Memorial Day theme of 
‘How can Life Go On’ and that free Holocaust resources can be found on their 
website www.hmd.org.uk – these include lesson plans, film clips, case 
studies, collective worship/assembly material and worksheets suitable for 
primary to post 16 students.

TRAINING FOR TEACHERS

Aim: To ensure that teachers are able to access appropriate continuing professional 
development

Action
1. The local authority, via Central South Consortium, offers CPD for schools. 

With the current Welsh Assembly Government’s emphasis on Literacy and 
Numeracy no subject specific training on RE is on offer.

COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

Aim: To ensure that schools fulfil statutory requirements for collective worship and 
provide a worthwhile experience for pupils. 

Action
1. SACRE monitors the sections of inspection reports that are concerned with 

collective worship and spiritual, moral, social and cultural development. if 
there are any issues such as the non-fulfilment of statutory requirements the 
la follows this up. The inspection reports of three Merthyr primary schools and 
three secondary schools were scrutinised. There was no non fulfilment of 
statutory requirements identified in the reports and therefore no follow up 
action was necessary. 

2. Schools have been informed by SACRE of appropriate resources and 
websites that support collective worship in schools e.g. HMD 2017. 

OTHER ISSUES: 

Aim: To ensure a more informed SACRE through providing regular updates on local 
and national issues.

Page 12

http://www.hmd.org.uk/


7

1. SACRE has maintained its membership of the Wales Association of SACREs 
(WASACRE) and receives termly feedback from meetings of the association. 

2. Members have received various presentations and reports this year:
Mrs V Thomas gave a presentation on The Review of the National Curriculum 
and its Implications for RE; SACRE received two presentations from teachers 
on RE in the Primary school and RE in the secondary school.  

3. SACRE agreed that where possible they would hold meetings at schools in 
Merthyr for members to familiarise themselves with RE in schools. Two visits 
took place this year to Afon Taf High School and Trelewis Primary School. 
Both schools made presentations to members on What is RE like at their 
schools.  

Page 13



8

SUMMARY OF ADVICE TO THE LOCAL AUTHORITY ON 
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

The local agreed syllabus

During the spring term 2008 Standing Conference endorsed and adopted a new 
agreed syllabus for the authority’s schools to be implemented from September 2008. 
A yearly programme of INSET on the agreed syllabus and support materials, 
including schemes of work and electronic Progress in Learning files for secondary 
schools, were issued to primary and secondary schools. 

During the 2012 – 2013 academic year SACRE were made aware of the 
announcement by the Minister of Education and Skills of a pending review of 
assessment and the National Curriculum in Wales.  This review would involve the 
introduction of the National Literacy and Numeracy Framework and the identification 
of revisions to the current assessment and curriculum arrangements.   In June 2013 
Standing Conference endorsed the re-adoption of the Merthyr Tydfil agreed syllabus, 
with an understanding that the syllabus would be reviewed once further information is 
received in relation to the assessment and National Curriculum review. From 2013 
onwards members received regular updates on the consultations undertaken in 
relation to the national curriculum and assessment review, the report and 
recommendations by Professor Donaldson and Merthyr SACRE responded to the 
WG questionnaire on the recommendations of Donaldson.

During 2016-2017, SACRE has been updated on a termly basis of developments 
with the NC review and the place of RE within the Humanities Area of Learning and 
Experience. SACRE are awaiting further details from Welsh Government on the 
shape of RE in the curriculum, and advice from WASACRE, before beginning any RE 
agreed syllabus review

Standards in religious education

SACRE has adopted a number of strategies for monitoring standards achieved in 
religious education in the authority’s schools that include analysing school inspection 
reports, monitoring school self-evaluation, reviewing examination results and 
analysing end of key stage 3 data. 

 Examination results

SACRE considered examination performance in the secondary schools for 2016. The 
examination results are compared with the All Wales and Consortium figures and 
with the results of the previous years. SACRE members are also informed of the 
percentage of the year 11 cohort being entered for the religious studies GCSE 
examinations (specification A and B). The examination results are published as an 
appendix along with results for the previous two years. 

At GCSE Full Course in Religious Education there was 156 entries from 4 schools 
and EQTAS. Entry numbers are higher than 2015 but below 2014. All schools have 
entries in double figures. The average cohort entry for Merthyr Tydfil in 2016 was 
25.4% which is better than 2015(23.2%) but below 2014 (28.4%). Cohort entry is 
below Consortia and All Wales figures  

The overall % of A*- A grades was 33.3% which is the best performance of the last 3 
years. It is also better than Consortium (29.1) and All Wales (27.8%) figures. The 

Page 14



9

overall % of A*- C grades was 69.9% and is below 2015 but better than 2014. It is 
comparable with Consortium figure (69.2%) but below the All Wales figure of 72%.

The overall % of A*-G grades was 98.1% and is comparable with previous 
performance and better than Consortium figure (96.9%) and All Wales figure of 
97.8%. 

At GCSE Short Course in Religious Education there was an increase in entries 
this year. Two schools had entries in triple figures and thus enter a significant 
percentage of the cohort and pupils of all ability levels. Some schools enter pupils for 
two short courses and their performance has been reflected in the full course results. 
However, it is important to bear in mind that those pupils entered for two short 
courses will be mainly the more able and this will reflect on the A*-A and A*-C results 
for Short Course.

The average cohort entry for Merthyr Tydfil in 2016 was 58.3% and is higher than 
previous cohort entry figures. It was just below the Consortium entry figure of 60.7% 
but much higher than the All Wales figure of 36.1% 

The overall % of A*- A grades of 18.7% is below previous performance. It is 
comparable with the Consortium figure of 18.9% but better than All Wales figure of 
11.4%.The overall % of A*- C grades was 52.0% and is below previous performance.  
It is below the Consortium figure of 55.4% but better than the All Wales figure of 
45.4%.The overall % of A*-G grades was 94.1% and is below previous performance. 
It is better than the Consortium figure of 92.6% and the All Wales figure of 90.5%.

SACRE were pleased to note that the entry pattern was higher in 2016. This is very 
encouraging because it provides pupils with the opportunity for accreditation for their 
KS4 study especially when pupils do not usually opt to follow the Short Course but it 
is delivered as part of the statutory requirements for RE. 

At GCE A Level and AS level pupils are now entered at Merthyr College due to 
tertiary reorganisation. SACRE received the results from the College.

At A level there were 21 entries from the college and students studied Ethics and 
Human Experience at A2. The entry figures have slightly decreased this year. 

A*-A was achieved by 11% of students and is better than 2015 performance but 
below the Consortium figure of 21.3% and the All Wales figure of 19%. At A*-C 
candidates achieved a pass rate of 79% and is comparable with 2015 and better than 
2014 performance and is comparable with Consortia and All Wales figures. 

The pass rate for grades A-E of 100% is excellent and maintains the excellent 
performance of 2015. It is better than the Consortia figure and All-Wales figures.

At AS level there were 12 entries from Merthyr College and numbers are down this 
year but better than 2014. Students studied Buddhism and Ethics at AS.
 
There were 23.5% of students achieving an A grade and this is the best performance 
of the last 3 years.  It is comparable with the Consortium figure and better than the All 
Wales figure of 16% At A-C candidates achieved a pass rate of 82% which is better 
than previous performance and the Consortia figure of 73.3%.and the All Wales 
figure of 63%.The pass rate for grades A-E of 100% is excellent and comparable with 
previous excellent performance and better than the Consortium and all Wales 
figures. 

Page 15



10

 Key stage 3 data

Members of Merthyr Tydfil SACRE also consider the levels awarded by teachers to 
pupils at the end of key stage 3. Comparisons are made with previous performance 
in religious education. 

Pupils’ (boys and girls) achieving level 5 and above are 89.3% which shows a year 
on year improvement with 86.5% (2015) and 79.3% (2014)). The results for boys only 
in 2016 (89.7%) are better than 2015 (82.9%) and for girls only their results have 
improved by approx 2%. The gap in performance between boys and girls has 
narrowed again this year with it being 3% and 8% (2015) and 16% (2014). The 
results at L5+ in 2016 are better than Consortium figures for Boys, comparable with 
Consortium figures with girls and better than Consortium figures for All Pupils. 

Results at L6+ for all pupils are 46.6% and this again shows a year on year 
improvement in performance with 44.8% (2015) 25.8% (2014).  Boys’ performance at 
37.7% is comparable with 2015 (37.6%) and girls’ performance has also improved by 
approx 4%. The gap in performance between boys and girls has increased this year 
to 19% at L6+ compared to 16% (2015) and 18% (2014). The results overall are 
below the Consortium figures for Boys / Girls and All Pupils. 

End of key stage 3 levels are published in Appendix 4.  

 School inspection reports

SACRE, with the LA’s agreement and co-operation, receives reports from 
professional officers on standards and provision and reviews summary reports of 
inspection findings and Estyn surveys.  During the academic year of 2016/17 SACRE 
members received details of school inspections undertaken between autumn 2015 
and summer 2016. 
 
The inspection reports of three primary schools and two secondary schools were 
analysed. There were comments of schools having good community links with local 
churches and charities that provide positive experiences. Some schools were 
providing a range of interesting visits and activities that promote pupils’ 
understanding of other cultures, such as a recent visit to the local mosque. 

There were no issues relating to religious education identified in the reports and 
therefore no follow up action was necessary. 

Methods of teaching, choice of teaching materials, teacher training

Professional Development 

The local authority, via Central South Consortium, offers CPD to schools. The local 
authority informed SACRE that with the current Welsh Assembly Government’s 
emphasis on Literacy and Numeracy no subject specific training is on offer. 

RE News

SACRE agreed to inform all schools of the RE News website and encourage schools 
to submit articles http://www.religious-education-wales.org

Page 16

http://www.religious-education-wales.org/


11

Each year, SACRE has a programme of school visits and receives a presentation on 
RE and/or Collective Worship at their schools. Where relevant, SACRE encourages 
schools to submit articles exemplifying good practice to RE News. 

Teaching Materials 

Holocaust Memorial Day 2017 Resources

All schools were informed of the 2017 Holocaust Memorial Day theme of “How Can 
Life Go On”.

Schools were informed by SACRE that further information about the theme and free 
educational Holocaust resources can be found on their website www.hmd.org.uk – 
these include lesson plans, film clips, case studies, collective worship/assembly 
material and worksheets suitable for primary to post 16 students. 

Schools were also informed of a series of workshops or events organised by Merthyr 
Library Service and a Memorial Service held at St David’s Church, Merthyr. 

Page 17

http://www.hmd.org.uk/


12

SUMMARY OF ADVICE ON COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

School inspection reports

The local authority and its SACRE scrutinised relevant sections of Estyn school 
inspection reports for the period academic year Autumn 2015- Summer 2016. If any 
issues emerge regarding collective worship, such as non fulfilment of statutory 
requirements, then the LA follows this up requesting their action plan. The inspection 
reports of three primary schools and two secondary schools were analysed and 
members presented with a summary of findings from these inspections. 

SACRE assumes that all schools inspected met statutory requirements in relation to 
collective worship as Estyn has not noted any instances of non-compliance and 
therefore no follow up action was necessary. 

Comments in relation to spiritual development are evident in all three inspection 
reports. 

Some positive comments include that daily assemblies reinforce the school’s values 
very successfully and provide valuable opportunities for pupils to reflect on the world 
around them. The use of visitors to schools, such as the local minister, provides 
pupils with valuable experiences. There were no shortcomings identified in the 
reports. 

Applications for determinations

No applications were received from schools for determinations to be made on the 
lifting of the requirements for collective worship to be wholly or mainly of a broadly 
Christian character.

Page 18



13

SUMMARY OF OTHER ISSUES

4.1 WASACRE

SACRE continues to support the work of the WASACRE and recognises the value of 
the body in promoting religious education and collective worship on a national basis. 
SACRE is represented on the WASACRE executive committee by the Chair of 
SACRE Ernie Galsworthy and their professional consultant Vicky Thomas and 
receive regular feedback from them and other representatives who attend 
WASACRE meetings. 
 
4.2      HOLOCAUST EDUCATION

Merthyr SACRE was informed of the 2017 Holocaust Memorial Day theme ‘How Can 
Life Go On’ and that further information about the theme and free educational 
Holocaust Memorial Day resources can be found on their website www.hmd.org.uk. 
SACRE resolved to inform schools about the availability of these resources and 
encourage them to commemorate HMD in some way. 

Schools were also informed of a series of workshops or events to commemorate 
HMD 2017 organised by Merthyr Tydfil Public Library service and a Memorial Service 
held at St David’s Church, Merthyr. 

The Committee was informed of the Holocaust Memorial Garden that had been 
created at the rear of the Central Library.

4.3 WELSH GOVERNMENT NATIONAL CURRICULUM REVIEW 

SACRE has received termly updates on the progress of the National Curriculum 
Review and its implications for RE in the curriculum. RE remains a statutory 
curriculum requirement from reception and should form part of the Humanities Area 
of Learning and Experience. WG agreed to send a termly newsletter to SACREs 
outlining the developmental work of the Pioneer Schools in relation to RE in the 
Humanities. The most recent newsletter refers to the  Humanities working group 
recommendation to follow the ‘Big Ideas’/What Matters approach as exemplified 
within Wynne Harlen et al’s’ Working with Big Ideas in Science’. This identifies the 
key knowledge/concepts, skills and competencies for each discipline within the 
Humanities and then ‘building’ the AoLE by identifying overarching ‘big ideas’/what 
matters key concepts that will be drawn across the disciplines. The next strand in the 
development work will begin during the Autumn term. The Executive Summary and 
the Humanities working group’s recommendations will be discussed by SACRE at its 
Autumn 2017 meeting and a suitable response will be made to WG, if necessary

4.4. REVISED CRITERIA FOR GCSE AND GCE SPECIFICATIONS

SACRE have been informed of the proposed changes to specifications and 
assessment practices for GCSE with an implementation date of Autumn 2017. In 
preparation for the new specification for first teaching from September 2017 two lead 
practitioners for GCSE Religious Studies have been appointed.  SACRE have been 
updated on the progress of their work with schools to support the implementation of 
the GCSE specification. 

Page 19

http://www.hmd.org.uk/


14

4.5. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR  RE 

SACRE was informed that the curriculum review had caused some confusion in 
schools regarding the status of agreed syllabuses. SACRE resolved to write to all 
schools reminding them that coverage of the programmes of study of the locally 
agreed syllabus remains a statutory requirement. It was brought to SACREs attention 
that the 2016 WASACRE survey on the impact of the WBQ on Religious Education 
showed that some secondary schools believed that delivery of the Global Citizenship 
element of WBQ was sufficient to cover the RE requirements. SACRE resolved to 
remind secondary schools that coverage of the Global Citizenship unit alone would 
not be sufficient to cover all aspects of the agreed syllabus KS4 programme of study 
It asked all schools to confirm that they understood the requirements of the agreed 
syllabus and that they are meeting these statutory requirements in their schools. 

4.6 MEETING WITH ESTYN

SACRE were informed that members of WASACRE and NAPfRE had met with Estyn 
in June 2017. The meeting was a positive one and had mutual benefits as it 
presented an opportunity for the delegation to gather information about the RE 
Thematic Review & New Inspection Framework and also raise concerns SACREs 
have regarding the meeting of  statutory requirements with particular attention drawn 
to the provision for RE at KS4.

Estyn outlined the personnel involved, process for identification of schools and the 
remit of the Thematic Review of KS2 &3.The delegation outlined the ways that 
SACREs monitor RE in schools, including the analysis of inspection reports. They 
stressed the importance of Estyn identifying whether or not statutory requirements 
are being met when they conduct inspections so that SACREs can act upon such 
information. The delegation also referred to the particular issue of delivery at KS4. It 
believed that some schools are not fully meeting statutory requirements at KS4 – 
especially those delivering through WBQ.   Estyn was very supportive of the 
concerns raised and said that they would raise these issues with their inspectors. 

4.7 TRAINING OF SACRE MEMBERS

As part of it’s training for members SACRE proposed the following:
Firstly, to keep members updated on developments in RE and collective worship 
through regular presentations to SACRE members. Mrs Vicky Thomas made one 
presentation this year on the review of the National Curriculum and its implications 
for RE. SACRE received two presentations from teachers on RE in the Primary 
school and RE in the secondary school.  

Secondly, SACRE agreed that where possible they would hold meetings at schools 
in Merthyr for members to familiarise themselves with RE in schools. Two visits took 
place this year to Afon Taf High School and Trelewis Primary School. Both schools 
made presentations to members on What is RE like at their schools.  

SACRE is very appreciative of the opportunities offered through visits and 
presentations to become more informed on RE and Collective worship issues in 
schools and would like to extend their appreciation to all concerned. A special note of 
thanks is extended to the clerk to SACRE, Karen Vokes, for all her hard work in 
making such arrangements.

Page 20



15

APPENDIX 1: MEMBERSHIP OF SACRE 2016-2017

Local authority

Councillor Gareth Lewis Local education authority
Councillor Ernie Galsworthy, Local education authority
Councillor Kate Moran Local education authority
Vacancy (x2) Local education authority

From May 2017

Councillor D Hughes Local education authority
Councilllor I Thomas Local education authority

Teacher associations

Amanda Jones RE Teachers’ Association 
Afon Taf High school

Sian Bernard-Henderson/ 
Leanne McCarthy

National Union of Teachers
Cyfartha High School

Vacancy UCAC

Vacancy Secondary Heads Association

Helen Price/Justine Jones NAS/UWT
Trelewis Primary
Twynyrodyn Community School

Katy Thomas Association of College Managers

Mark Carrington, NAHT 
Twynyrodyn Community School  

Lucy Draper Association of Teachers and Lecturers
Pen-y-Dre High School

Religious denominations

Deacon David O’Keefe Roman Catholic Church
Andy Pitt Evangelical Church
Ann Starr Presbyterian Church
Father Mark Prevett Church in Wales
Janine Brill Salvation Army

LA Officers

Sarah Bowen Inclusion Manager
Karen Vokes Clerk to SACRE
Vicky Thomas                         Independent RE Consultant

Page 21



16

APPENDIX 2: RECORD OF MEETINGS AND MAIN AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 November 1st 2016 at Afon Taf High school, Merthyr Tydfil

 Apologies
 Election of Chair person and Vice Chair person
 Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising
 Presentation on RE at Afon Taf High School 
 Membership update   
 Schedule of meetings 2016-2017
 SACRE annual report 2015-16 
 SACRE development plan 2015 – 2018 
 Inspection report Analysis Autumn 2015 -Summer 2016 
 RE and the National Curriculum: Update
 GCSE Religious Studies : Update 
 Inclusive SACREs Award
 WASACRE including Feedback from AGM at  Rhyl, Denbighshire on June 

23rd  2016; Representation at next meeting in Carmarthen on Friday 
November 18th 2016; date of Spring WASACRE Meeting at USk.  

 Holocaust Memorial Day 2017
 Correspondence

March 7th 2017 at Trelwis Community Primary School, Merthyr Tydfil 
 Presentation on RE at Trelewis school
 Apologies
 Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising
 Religious studies examination results 2016 
 KS3 Levels Data Analysis 2015 and 2016
 Examinations Specifications/ GCSE Support programme 
 National Curriculum review and assessment: Update 
 Estyn Annual remit 2017/18
 Holocaust Memorial Day 2017: Feedback - SACRE members 
 WASACRE issues: Feedback from meeting at Carmarthen; Verbal Feedback 

on Spring meeting at Usk, Monmouthshire; Representation at the summer 
WASACRE meeting at Wrexham on Friday July 7th 2017, Nominations to the 
WASACRE executive

 Correspondence 

July 4th 2017 at Civic Centre, Merthyr Tydfil
 Welcome to new members and training session outlining the roles and 

responsibilities of SACRE
 Apologies
 Declarations of Interest
 Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising
 Membership Update
 Schedule of Meetings 2017-2018
 Revised Criteria for GCSE and GCE specifications :Update
 National Curriculum Review and Assessment:  Update 
  Estyn Update (Oral Update)
 WASACRE issues: including feedback on Spring meeting at Usk, 

representation at the summer WASACRE meeting at Wrexham;Executive 
Voting for the Period 2017-20- see pen portraits

 Correspondence

Page 22



Appendix 3: SACRE development plan 

MERTHYR TYDFIL SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015 – 2018 (ACADEMIC YEAR) 

Aim 1: To monitor standards in Religious Education and Religious Studies.

Plan of action Schedule People 
involved

Time and 
costs

Outcomes Progress

1.1 Monitor standards through regular
review of inspection reports/ Estyn 
thematic reviews/ school self evaluation 
reports and recommend, where  
necessary, action by Local Authority.

Annual 
agenda item
Autumn 
Term 

Full SACRE
Adviser

Agenda time
Adviser time 
for analysis

Advice to LA on trends across 
the county borough; advice, 
where appropriate, on 
particular schools; follow up 
through school visits and 
review of action plan where 
necessary.

2015-2016
Considered 3.11.15. 
No non fulfilment of 
statutory requirements 
for RE identified. 
2016-17
Considered 1.11.16. 
No non fulfilment of 
statutory requirements 
for RE identified

1.2 Receive information on results of:
      Teacher Assessment at end of 
      Key Stage 3; GCSE Religious 
      Studies Full and Short Course;    
      A/AS level Religious Studies.

Spring Term Full SACRE
 Adviser

Agenda time
Adviser time 
for analysis

Advice to LA on trends; 
advice, where appropriate, on 
particular schools.

2015-2016
Considered 11.2.15. 
Schools informed of 
outcomes.
2016-17
Considered 7.3.16. 
Schools informed of 
outcomes.

1.3 Identify INSET needs, monitor and 
      offer advice on training.

Autumn 
Term 

Full SACRE Agenda time Training programme received 
along with figures on uptake; 
advice to LA.
 

2015-2016
No INSET on RE 
provided by LA or CSC
2016-17
No change

P
age 23



18

MERTHYR TYDFIL SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015 – 2018 (ACADEMIC YEAR) 

Aim 2: To review the agreed syllabus (as appropriate) and support its implementation. 

Plan of action Schedule People involved Time and costs Outcomes Progress
2.1 To review the agreed syllabus 
for Religious Education

Summer 2016 
onwards (or as 
appropriate)

Full SACRE
Adviser
Working group
NAPfRE

Advisory time to review 
the agreed syllabus.
Establish a working 
group (if applicable).
Convene a Standing 
Conference to  adopt 
the syllabus
Publication/ translation  
costs (as appropriate)

Agreed syllabus 
reviewed and 
adopted by Standing 
Conference.
Agreed Syllabus 
training programme 
for schools  (if 
required)
Agreed syllabus to be 
implemented the 
Autumn term after 
adoption.

2015-2016
SACRE has termly 
updates on 
curriculum 
development. 
SACRE are awaiting 
further details from 
Welsh Government 
on the shape of RE in 
the curriculum, and 
advice from 
WASACRE, before 
beginning any RE 
agreed syllabus 
review.
2016-17
A series of meetings 
have taken place 
between WASACRE 
and WG to discuss 
the place of RE in the 
curriculum. This is 
ongoing and SACRE 
have been informed 
of developments on a 
termly basis.  

P
age 24



19

2.2 Materials to support 
implementation of the agreed 
syllabus for RE

Ongoing Full SACRE
Adviser

 Advisory time Support materials 
available to schools 
and accessed 
through Consortium 
website.

2015-2016
Schools sent 
materials from 
Carmarthenshire LA 
2016-17
Not applicable

P
age 25



20

MERTHYR TYDFIL SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015 – 2018 (ACADEMIC YEAR) 

Aim 3: To monitor provision and provide support for collective worship.

Plan of action Schedule People 
involved

Time and 
costs

Outcomes Progress

3.1 Monitor provision for collective 
worship through regular review of 
inspection reports/ school self evaluation 
reports; recommend, where necessary, 
action by LA.

Annual 
agenda item
Autumn 
term

Full 
SACRE 
and 
Adviser 

Agenda time
Adviser time for 
analysis

Advice to LA on trends 
across the county borough; 
advice, where appropriate, 
on particular schools; follow 
up through school visits and 
review of action plan where 
necessary. 

2015-2016
Considered 3.11.15. 
One school not fulfilling 
statutory requirements 
for DACW. Action plan 
requested. Visit to 
school for presentation 
on action plan. Advice 
offered.  
2016-17
Considered 1.11.16. No 
non fulfilment of 
statutory requirements 
for CW identified

3.2  To support the implementation of 
statutory collective worship

Ongoing Advisory 
service 

Advisory time  Provision of INSET (if 
applicable)
Schools informed of 
resources and websites for 
collective worship.
Schools informed of 
guidance materials available 
for collective worship 

2015-2016
Schools informed of 
resources to support 
HMD 2016 including 
resources for acts of 
collective worship.
Schools received a 
PowerPoint 
presentation on What 
makes a good DACW 
to support CW in 

P
age 26



21

schools.
2016-17
Schools informed of 
resources to support 
HMD 2017 including 
resources for acts of 
collective worship.

P
age 27



22

MERTHYR TYDFIL SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015 – 2018 (ACADEMIC YEAR

Aim 4: To ensure a more informed SACRE through providing regular updates on local and national issues related to RE and 
collective worship in schools.

Plan of action Schedule People 
involved

Time and 
costs

Outcomes Progress

4.1 To update members on the role of 
SACRE and its implications; recent 
developments in RE and collective 
worship; guidance materials from 
relevant bodies; input from practising 
teachers and outside providers

Termly/ 
Annually as 
required

SACRE 
members , 
Adviser, 
practising 
teachers,  
outside 
providers 

Member time; 
Adviser / Officer 
time 

SACRE members fully aware 
of their responsibilities. 
SACRE and schools updated 
and informed of recent 
developments and initiatives, 
both local and national.

2015-2016
SACRE received 
updates on NC 
review and the 
development of exam 
specifications. 
SACRE received a 
presentation on What 
makes a good 
DACW?
2016-17
SACRE received 
updates on NC 
review, the 
development and 
support of exam 
specifications .

4.2 Programme of school visits. Termly/Ann
ually as 
required

 SACRE 
members, 
Adviser/ 
Officers

Member time; 
Officer time to 
arrange visits

More informed SACRE on 
provision and practice 
regarding RE and collective 
worship in schools. 
 

2015-2016
SACRE visited two 
schools this year, 
and received 
presentations on 
RE/CW at the 
schools.

P
age 28



23

2016-17
SACRE visited two 
schools this year and 
received 
presentations on the 
delivery of RE at 
each school. 

P
age 29



APPENDIX 4:  MERTHYR TYDFIL EXAMINATION RESULTS 2014 - 2016

GCSE RELIGIOUS STUDIES FULL COURSE 2016 (YEAR 11)
Merthyr 

2016
Merthyr 

2015
Merthyr 

2014
Consortium

2016
Wales 
2016

A*-A 33.3% 30.2% 18.8% 29.1% 27.8%
A*-C 69.9% 74.1% 65.3% 69.2% 72.0%
A*- G 98.1% 98.6% 98.8% 96.9% 97.8%
Entry 
Number

156
4 schools
& EQTAS

25.4% cohort

139
4 schools

23.2%

170
4 schools

28.4%

4482
46.5%cohort

11,051
34.3%cohort

GCSE RELIGIOUS EDUCATION SHORT COURSE 2016 (YEAR 11)
Merthyr 

2016
Merthyr 

2015
Merthyr 

2014
Consortium

2016
Wales 
2016

A*-A 18.7% 22.8% 20.4% 18.9% 11.4%
A*-C 52.0% 62.5% 69.6% 55.4% 45.4%
A*- G 94.1% 96.6% 98.9% 92.6% 90.5%
Entry 
Number

358
4 schools
& EQTAS

58.3% cohort

325
4 schools

54.3% cohort

270
3 schools

45.1% cohort

5848
60.7%

11,666
36.1%

GCE RELIGIOUS STUDIES A LEVEL 2016
Merthyr 
College 

2016

Merthyr 
College 

2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A*-A 11% 5% 20.69% 21.3% 19.0%
A*-C 79% 79% 75.86% 79.7% 79.0%
A*- E 100% 100% 96.55% 93.0% 99.0%
Entry 
Number

21 25 29
3 schools

586 1446

GCE RELIGIOUS STUDIES (AS LEVEL) 2016
Merthyr 
College 

2016

Merthyr 
College 

2015

Merthyr 
2014

Consortium
2016

Wales 
2016

A 23.5% 0% 0% 22.9% 16%
A – C 82% 68% 66.67% 73.3% 63%
A – E 100% 100% 100% 95.5% 89%
Entry 
Number

12 25 9
1 school

625 1535
12.7%

Page 30



25

APPENDIX 5: Key Stage 3     Year 9 Religious Education Levels Merthyr 2016

BOYS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total %
 L 5+

% 
L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr 
Percentages 252 0.0 0.0 0.8 8.7 52.0 29.0 8.3 0.4 0.0 0.8 0.0 100 89.7 37.7 8.7
Consortium

3833 0.0
0.1 1.8 11.0 42.4 32.0 10.6 0.8

0.1
0.8 0.4 100 85.9 43.5 11.5

GIRLS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total % 
L 5+

%
 L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr
Percentages 220 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.3 35.9 36.4 19.1 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 92.7 56.8 20.5

Consortium
3494 0.0

0.1 0.8 5.4 30.2 37.6 22.5 2.7 0.1 0.5 100 93.1 62.9 25.4

ALL PUPILS NOR Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Level 
4

Level 
5

Level 
6

Level 
7

Level 
8

EP No 
Level

Dis
applied

Total % 
L 5+

%
 L 6+

% 
L 7+

Merthyr
Percentages 472 0.0 0.0 0.4 8.1 44.5 32.4 13.3 0.8 0.0 0.4 0.0 100 91.1 46.6 14.2
Consortium

7327
0.0

0.1 1.3 8.3 36.6 34.6 16.2 1.7 0.1 0.6 0.3 100 89.3 52.7 18.1

P
age 31



APPENDIX 6: CIRCULATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

Copies will be sent electronically to the relevant bodies. This report will be available 
on the local authority and WASACRE websites for interested parties to download. 

 Members of Merthyr Tydfil SACRE

 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Democratic Services

 All Merthyr Tydfil County Borough schools

 Central South Consortium

 Wales Association of SACREs (WASACRE)

 National Library, Aberystwyth

 Welsh Government

 Estyn

 Cytun

Page 32



27

APPENDIX 7:
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

Constitution

Terms of reference

1. To advise the LA on matters connected with collective worship in county 
schools.

2. To advise the LA on matters connected with religious education which is given 
in accordance with the agreed syllabus.

3. To decide when, within the five year statutory time scale, the LA should review 
its agreed syllabus.

4. To consider with the LA and the Agreed Syllabus Conference any changes 
required to the agreed syllabus.

5. To consider with the LA the support offered to religious education in its schools, 
with particular regard to methods of teaching, the choice of teaching materials 
and the provision of training for teachers.

6. To offer advice on any other matters related to its function as it sees fit.

7. To publish an annual report on its work, which should:

a. specify any matters on which it has advised the LA;
b. broadly describe the nature of the advice;
c. set out its reasons for offering advice on any matters which were not 

referred to it in the first place by the LA; and
d. record the membership of SACRE and the dates of meetings held.

9. To participate in the LA’s statutory complaints procedures in those instances 
where the complaints relate to religious education and/or collective worship.

10. To receive and make determinations in respect of applications from 
headteachers of county schools for the lifting or modifying of the requirements 
that collective worship in such schools must be wholly or mainly of a broadly 
Christian character.

Page 33



28

Composition

11. The council shall comprise three groups representing:

a. Such Christian and other religious denominations as, in the opinion of the 
LA, will appropriately reflect the religious traditions in the area. 

b. Such associations representing teachers as, in the opinion of the LA, ought 
to be represented having regard to the circumstances of the area.

c. The LA.

12. The Council may also co-opt members.

13. Membership of the Council shall be for a period of four years. Any outgoing 
members may be re-appointed.

14. Membership of the Council is subject to the condition that the LA has taken all 
reasonable steps to assure itself that the persons appointed are representative, 
as the case may be, of the denominations or associations in question.

15. Members representing associations of teachers must include teachers of 
religious education.

16. Individuals may be removed from the Council if they cease to be representative 
of the denomination, association or of the Authority they were appointed to 
represent.

17. Any member of the Council may at any time resign his or her office.

Proceedings

18. The Council shall meet not less than once in each school term.

19. The Council shall elect from its membership a chairperson and vice 
chairperson at the first meeting in each academic year. The chairperson and 
vice chairperson in any one year shall not be drawn from the same 
representative group. An outgoing chairperson may be re-appointed.

20. On any question to be decided by the Council only the representative groups 
on the Council shall be entitled to vote, and each group shall have a single 
vote. Before a formal vote is taken opportunity shall be given to each 
representative group to determine how its vote is to be cast. 

21. Co-opted members are not entitled to vote.

Page 34



29

22. The agenda for each meeting shall be determined by the chairperson and vice 
chairperson in consultation with the clerk to SACRE, Director of Education and 
Professional Officer. Any voting member of SACRE shall be entitled to propose 
items for an agenda.

23. In the case of any member not being able to attend a Council meeting, a 
substitute may be nominated by the body which that person represents, 
provided that the substitute meets the eligibility criteria and the Education 
Directorate of the LA is notified in advance of the meeting.

24. A meeting of the Council will be deemed to be quorate if at least one member 
of each of the three representative groups is present.

25. The validity of proceedings of the Council shall not be affected:

a. by a vacancy in the office of any member of the Council or
b.  on the grounds that a member of the Council appointed to represent any 

denomination or association does not, at the time of the proceedings, 
represent the denomination or association in question.

25. The representative groups on the Council, other than that representing the 
Authority, may call, at any time, for a review of the agreed syllabus current in 
the Authority. At such time an Agreed Syllabus Conference shall be constituted 
and convened.

26. The Council shall consider its annual report at the first meeting to be held in 
each academic year. Upon the Council’s ratification of the report it shall 
proceed to publication.

27. The clerk to the SACRE shall arrange for copies of the annual report to be sent 
to all county schools within the Authority, to DfES, the National Library and to 
such other individuals and institutions as the LA sees fit.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: 2016- 2017

SACRE Synopsis: Main findings 

During the academic year Autumn 2016-Summer 2017, two primary schools and one special school were inspected. No secondary schools were inspected, but monitoring 
visits were made in the secondary sector. 

Spiritual Development 
Comments in relation to spiritual development are evident in two inspection reports and opportunities for spiritual development were evident in all three inspection 
reports.

Collective Worship 

Meeting statutory requirements
The Estyn Common Inspection Framework notes that inspectors should only report on instances where the school does not comply with statutory requirements. We can 
assume that all schools inspected – as Estyn has not noted any instances of non-compliance - meet statutory requirements in relation to collective worship.

Quality
Two reports made comment on the quality of collective worship

Good features

 Thought provoking assemblies provide beneficial opportunities for pupils to reflect on their own beliefs and explore a wide range of moral issues. 
 Collective worship sessions support pupils’ spiritual and moral development effectively, and they are given appropriate opportunities to reflect on relevant issues.  

Shortcomings

None 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 11



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: 2016- 2017

School
and date of 
inspection

Spiritual Development CW: meeting 
legal 
requirements

CW: quality Other comments / issues / religious education / cultural 
development / community links

Dowlais Primary 
School

October 2016

The school has effective provision to support 
pupils’ spiritual, moral and cultural 
development.

 Yes No mention in the 
report

Current performance: Good
Prospects for improvement: Good
The school provides a wide range of learning experiences 
of high quality that enrich and enhance all pupils’ learning.  
The planned curriculum meets the requirements of the 
Foundation Phase, National Curriculum and religious 
education.

The school has an open, caring and inclusive ethos.  

A sense of fairness for all is evident in the work of the 
school and it recognises and celebrates diversity actively.

The school’s provision for education for sustainable 
development and global citizenship is increasingly strong.  
Its active eco-committee takes a positive role in helping 
the school to act sustainably through monitoring energy 
usage, recycling and composting waste food.  The school 
promotes global citizenship appropriately through its eco 
days and class-based fair trade activities.

Most pupils are respectful and show consideration towards 
one another.  They behave well in class and around the 
school.  Most pupils develop their social and life skills well.

School
and date of 
inspection

Spiritual Development CW: meeting 
legal 
requirements

CW: quality Other comments / issues / religious education / cultural 
development / community links

Greenfield Special 
School
March 2017

There was no specific mention of spiritual 
development in the report.  However from 
the report we can see that opportunities for 

Yes Thought provoking 
assemblies provide 
beneficial 

Current performance: Excellent
Prospects for improvement: Excellent
Pupils feel safe in school and benefit from the nurturing 

P
age 38



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: 2016- 2017

spiritual development are evident as, 
‘Thought provoking assemblies provide 
beneficial opportunities for pupils to reflect 
on their own beliefs and explore a wide 
range of moral issues.’

opportunities for 
pupils to reflect on 
their own beliefs and 
explore a wide range 
of moral issues. 

ethos and high level of care and support provided by staff.

The school is a welcoming, highly inclusive and caring 
community that values and supports all of its pupils and 
staff.  The school motto ‘opening doors to the future’ 
permeates through all aspects of its work successfully.  
Staff and pupils promote the strong ethos and values 
exceptionally well across the school.  The school celebrates 
and respects equality and diversity well, and all pupils have 
equal access to all areas of the curriculum.

Pupils make strong progress in developing their 
independence and take increasing responsibility for 
themselves and others as they grow through the school.  
Many pupils develop important life skills by participating in 
community events, for example by performing in drama 
productions, attending regional sporting events and 
fundraising for national charities. 

Provision for promoting pupils’ understanding of 
sustainable development is highly creative and successful.  
For example, through community and school projects, 
pupils across the school develop a thorough understanding 
of the importance of recycling and energy conservation.  
Well-established links with other countries, such as Chile, 
help to promote pupils’ understanding of global 
citizenship.  

The school plans highly individualised intervention 
programmes for pupils who require support with their 
basic skills, behaviour and social communication skills.  For 
example, targeted support in the Foundation Phase to 
improve pupils’ self-esteem and confidence has a very 

P
age 39



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: 2016- 2017

positive impact on younger pupils’ behaviour.

School
and date of 
inspection

Spiritual Development CW: meeting 
legal 
requirements

CW: quality Other comments / issues / religious education / cultural 
development / community links

Ysgol Gymraeg 
Rhyd-Y-Grug
January 2017

Provision to develop pupils’ spiritual, moral, 
social and cultural development is good.  
Collective worship sessions support pupils’ 
spiritual and moral development effectively, 
and they are given appropriate opportunities 
to reflect on relevant issues.  There are very 
successful procedures to promote positive 
behaviour and encourage pupils to respect 
each other and adults. 

Yes Collective worship 
sessions support 
pupils’ spiritual and 
moral development 
effectively, and they 
are given 
appropriate 
opportunities to 
reflect on relevant 
issues.  

Members of the 
school council and 
eco committee play 
a prominent role 
within the school.  
They gather the 
ideas of their fellow 
pupils regularly and 
report back on their 
activities successfully 
in assemblies.  

Current performance: Good
Prospects for improvement: Good

Staff plan effectively in order to provide broad and 
interesting experiences for pupils, which respond fully to 
the requirements of the Foundation Phase, the National 
Curriculum and the agreed syllabus for religious education.

Members of the school council and eco committee play a 
prominent role within the school.  They gather the ideas of 
their fellow pupils regularly and report back on their 
activities successfully in assemblies.  Members arrange 
fundraising activities for a number of charities, and this has 
a positive effect on their awareness of other people’s 
needs.

Pupils take good advantage of valuable opportunities to 
contribute to various activities in the local community.  For 
example, taking part in a recent concert to commemorate 
the Aberfan disaster has reminded the pupils of their 
heritage and the importance of the local community in 
their everyday lives.

There is a valuable partnership between the school and the 
local community.

The school promotes pupils’ sustainable development very 
well.  The eco committee promote recycling and saving 

P
age 40



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL - SCHOOL INSPECTION REPORTS SACRE SYNOPSIS: 2016- 2017

energy successfully.  Provision to promote pupils’ 
understanding of global citizenship is effective; for 
example, by studying foreign countries and their way of 
life, pupils’ understanding of other cultures is developing 
well.

Estyn Monitoring Visits

Afon Taf High School is judged to have made good progress in respect of the key issues for action following the Estyn visit in March 2014.  The school has 
been removed from the list of schools requiring Estyn monitoring.  There will be no further Estyn monitoring visits in relation to this inspection.  

 
Cyfarthfa High School is judged to have made good progress in respect of the key issues for action following the Estyn visit in March 2016.  The school has 
been removed from the list of schools requiring Estyn monitoring.  There will be no further Estyn monitoring visits in relation to this inspection.

Date of visit:  January 2017 
Goetre Primary School is judged to have made sufficient progress in relation to the recommendations following the core inspection in December 2013. As a 
result, Her Majesty’s Chief Inspector of Education and Training in Wales is removing the school from the list of schools requiring significant improvement. In 
order to maintain and improve on this progress, the school should continue to sustain the level of progress it has already made, and continue to address 
those inspection recommendations where further progress is required. There is no specific mention of religious education or collective worship in the 
report. 

Pen-Y-Dre High School is judged to have made good progress in respect of the key issues for action following the Estyn visit in November 2015.  The school 
has been removed from the list of schools requiring Estyn monitoring.  There will be no further Estyn monitoring visits in relation to this inspection. 
 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Dear SACRE members,

Please find below an update in relation to the curriculum reform process so far and 
an invitation for you as a SACRE to comment on the work of the Humanities working 
group to date. 

Curriculum Reform
Following the publication of Successful Futures, Professor Donaldson’s independent 
review of curriculum and assessment arrangements in Wales, and the acceptance of 
all 68 recommendations, the pioneer schools network was established in autumn 
2015. Working with key partners and experts, these schools are playing a central 
role in developing the new curriculum for Wales. 

Strand 1 – Strategic Design
During the first phase of the curriculum development process, four pioneer working 
groups were established to develop high-level strategic principles to inform the 
development of the new curriculum. 

These groups focussed on:
 Assessment and Progression
 Cross-curriculum Responsibilities
 Enrichment and Experiences
 Welsh Dimension, International Perspectives and Wider Skills

Each group published an interim report in January 2017 and they can be found on 
our blog.

Strand 2 – Area of Learning and Experience Design
In January 2017, 6 pioneer working groups were established to begin developing 
initial high level proposals for each of the Areas of Learning and Experience (AoLEs) 
outlined in Successful Futures: 

 Expressive Arts
 Health and Well-being
 Humanities
 Languages, Literacy and Communication
 Mathematics and Numeracy
 Science and Technology

Professor Donaldson recommends that Religious Education forms part of the 
Humanities AoLE. Therefore, you as a SACRE, and WASACRE as the national 
body, are key partners in developing this aspect of the new curriculum for Wales. To 
enable this work, a planning group of WASACRE, NAPfRE, Welsh Government as 
well as regional consortia and Estyn Humanities representatives has been 
established.

Since January, the AoLE groups have focused on the following tasks:

Page 43

Agenda Item 12

http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/150225-successful-futures-en.pdf
https://curriculumforwales.gov.wales/page/2/


 A clear statement of how the AoLE promotes the four purposes of the 
curriculum.

 A description of the scope and boundaries of the AoLE, including its central 
concerns, how it is distinct from other areas and why it is important for the 
education of each child and young person.

 A decision about how best to present the various component subjects and/or 
strands with the AoLE.

 A commentary on the presumed levels of specificity throughout the AoLE and 
reasoning behind this. 

As part of the development work for each of the above outlined tasks, the 6 AoLE 
working groups have prepared and produced reports outlining their thinking to date. 

The executive summaries are available to view via the attached link below:

http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-
far-en-v2.pdf 

Next steps
Work on developing the detail of the curriculum will begin in the autumn term and we 
will work closely with WASACRE and NAPfRE colleagues during this process. To 
inform our work going forward, we would also like to invite you as a SACRE to 
consider the executive summary in relation to the Humanities AoLE and provide 
comments and/or suggestions for consideration during the next phase of work. 

We will send the next update at the end of the autumn term/beginning of the spring 
term and will again invite feedback and comments based on the proposals produced 
from September onwards.

Best wishes,

Manon Jones
Welsh Government

Page 44

http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-far-en-v2.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170707-new-curriculum-for-wales-story-so-far-en-v2.pdf


1

Cyfarfod Cymdeithas CYSAGau Cymru, Wrecsam, 7 July 2017 (10.30am – 
3pm)

Wales Association of SACREs meeting, Wrexham, 7 July 2017 (10.30am – 
3pm)

Presenoldeb/Attendance

Ynys Môn / Anglesey
Bethan James (BJ)
Rheinallt Thomas (RT)
Mefys Jones-Edwards 
(M J)

Blaenau Gwent
Gill Vaisey (GV)

Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / 
Bridgend
Edward Evans (EE)
Vicky Thomas (VT)

Caerffili/ Caerphilly
Vicky Thomas (VT)
John Taylor (JT)

Caerdydd / Cardiff
Gill Vaisey (GV)

Sir Gaerfyrddin / 
Carmarthenshire
Mary Parry (MP)

Ceredigion
Lyndon Lloyd MBE (LL)

Conwy
Phil Lord (PL)

Sir Ddinbych / Denbighshire
Phil Lord (PL)
Emrys Wynne (EW)
Simon Cameron (SC)

Sir y Fflint / Flintshire
Phil Lord (PL)
Roz Williams (RL)

Gwynedd
Bethan James (BJ)

Merthyr Tudful / Merthyr 
Tydfil
Vicky Thomas (VT)
Ernie Galsworthy  (EG)

Sir Fynwy / Monmouthshire
Gill Vaisey (GV)

Castell-nedd Port Talbot /
Neath and Port Talbot

Casnewydd / Newport
Vicky Thomas (VT)
Sally Northcott (SN)

Sir Benfro /
Pembrokeshire
Mary Parry (MP)

Powys
John Mitson (JM)
Margaret Evitts (ME)

Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Paula Webber (PW)

Abertawe / Swansea
Alison Lewis (AL)
Vicky Thomas (VT)

Torfaen /Torfaen
Vicky Thomas (VT)

Bro Morgannwg /
Vale of Glamorgan
Paula Webber (PW) 

Wrecsam / Wrexham
Libby Jones (LJ)
Tania ap Sion (TaS)
Liz Davies (LD)
Bhupinder Virdee-Lace (BV-L)
Samantha Jesson (SJ)
Martin Matthias (MM)
Rev. James Harris (Rev. JH)
Ruth Holden (RH)

Sylwedyddion /
Observers
Dr Farookh Jishi (Wrexham 
Muslim Association)

Page 45

Agenda Item 15



2

Minutes

1. Cyflwyniad a chroeso / Introduction and welcome
Members enjoyed choir performances from Eyton VC School, Ysgol Penrhyn and St. Christopher’s 
School. Members were welcomed to the Chamber by Cllr. John Pritchard, Mayor of Wrexham and Sam 
Jesson, Chair of Wrexham SACRE. They thanked the children for their performances. Sam Jesson noted 
that with the introduction of Successful Futures, it is an exciting, creative and innovative time for 
education.  Phil Lord (PL) opened the meeting and also thanked the children for their performances. He 
expressed gratitude to Cllr. Pritchard and Sam Jesson for their welcome.

2. Adfyfyrio tawel / Quiet reflection
PL led a quiet reflection upon the disaster at Grenfell Tower. He spoke about media reports of a 
catalogue of events leading up to the disaster. PL asked members to consider that what we say and what 
we do can have an impact on other people in good or in bad ways. He asked everyone working in 
SACREs and schools to think about how they can do little things to make a difference for the better.  

3. Ymddiheuriadau / Apologies 
Andrew Pearce, Dr Annette Daly, Neeta Baicher, Tudor Thomas, Sue Cave, Christine Abbas, Mathew 
Maidment, Alwen Roberts, Dafydd Trehearne, Cllr. P. A. Roberts, Rachel Samuel, Rachel Bendall, 
Pauline Smith, Manon Jones. Huw Stephens, Sharon Perry-Phillips, Leslie Francis. Helen Gibbon, 
Meinir Wynne Loader, Huw George, Marilyn Frazer.

4. Cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd yng Nghaerfyrddin, 3 Mawrth 2017 / Minutes of meeting held 
in Monmouthshire,3 March 2017
With the exception of a few minor typing errors and a missing date on p.7 the minutes were accepted as 
a true record of the meeting. Proposed by Vicky Thomas and seconded by Rheinallt Thomas

5. Materion yn codi / Matters arising
P.4 - matters arising p.10 – Edward Evans (EE) wrote to Kirsty Williams - Action completed. 

P. 10. VT found no issue within the inspection report. She met with the Challenge Advisor. Caerphilly 
sent a letter and survey to all secondary schools and had100% returns. It was pointed out that the issue 
of schools not fulfilling their statutory obligations in delivering RE is a wider problem. The survey 
revealed that some schools were delivering RE during thought for the day or registration. The local 
authority will write to schools to point out that this is not an appropriate vehicle for the delivery of RE. 

p.14. Item 11.h. PW attended two study days at the University of Chester. These were geared toward 
teachers of A Level, but were not board specific. The aim was to give teachers a ‘back to university 
experience’ rather than providing CPD.  Nevertheless, PW reported that the workshops provided very 
good CPD for teachers. The university hopes to provide further study days in the future. 

RT raised a concern over the protocol for sending out WASACRE minutes. He reminded WASACRE 
members that traditionally minutes would be received within two weeks of the meeting. The current 
process is that minutes are checked by the Chair and the Executive Committee for accuracy prior to 
being sent out because of the national status of WASACRE. Some SACREs need access to the minutes 
earlier as there are a wide range of dates for SACRE meetings and they are needed in advance of 
meetings. Welsh speakers expressed concern that they would have to read the minutes twice if they 

Page 46



3

were initially sent out in English with a translation to follow. There was a suggestion that the translator 
be given a date in advance. It was recognised that, as a first principle, there should be equality for both 
languages. A member suggested that the minutes should be written promptly as there was an 
honorarium paid to the secretary to do so. The role of the secretary and the honorarium were, therefore, 
discussed. GV raised the question of payment for the role of Secretary. JM reported that the honorarium 
paid to the secretary hasn’t changed since WASACRE was established. Members discussed whether it 
might be necessary to have a minutes secretary or whether it would be necessary to review the 
honorarium?  The standard and detail of the minutes were discussed and some members felt that it was 
important that the secretary have subject knowledge.

ACTIONS:- 
i. Minutes should go out before the SACREs are going to meet. 
ii. Executive meeting to discuss the honorarium paid to the secretary, the issue of 

translation into Welsh and to consider when Executive meetings are held in order to 
send WASACRE minutes to SACREs at the earliest opportunity. Minutes to be checked 
by the Chair and go out to SACREs before the Executive Meeting. 

6. Cyflwyniad NAPfRE / NAPfRE presentation: Supporting the new GCSE RS specification - The 
work of GwE Lead Practitioner's for Religious Studies – Mefys Jones– Lead Practioner for 
Religious Education GwE.  
Mefys Jones presented on the progress of lead practitioners in N. Wales and their work to provide 
support for schools delivering the new GCSE specification. Mefys is a member of Anglesey SACRE 
and regional lead practitioner in N. Wales. The presentation included:

a. The aim of the three RS Hubs in the north is to ensure consistency across the region and to 
support teachers. Three meetings were organised during the year. The initial meetings were used 
to unpack the specification. It had been difficult to access resources for the new GCSE as text 
books had not been made available in time.  

b. A questionnaire was distributed to identify teachers’ concerns. They needed help in areas such as 
planning schemes of work, developing assessment material and marking of examination 
answers. Teachers wanted advice on resources and on the new humanist perspective within the 
specification. The sharing of resources was a main concern. Accessing Welsh resources was a 
particular problem as the textbook was initially only published in English. Mefys pointed out 
that the Buddhism A level course book had arrived a month after the examination. There was 
also a great concern that both the new GCSE and A Level had been introduced at the same time 
and that WJEC CPD meeting didn’t take place until almost the end of the autumn term. 

c. Lead practitioners explored content that was similar in the old specification and identified what 
was new in order to consider which resources could be reused. Facebook and email were used 
for sharing information and uploading resources. Hwb was available, but had not been 
embedded everywhere. GWE is in the process of setting up a website to upload resources. The 
Save RE Facebook page had been a valuable resource. For teachers using the medium of English 
Eduqas resources were useful, but they needed to be translated into Welsh. Other resources 
included Bitesize, especially the video clips, and True Tube for religious and moral issues. 

d.  A conference was held in Llandudno. The support from headteachers in releasing teachers for 
this event had been very welcome. Joy White attended to talk about assessment. Rob Grinter, a 
humanist, was present to talk to teachers about the humanist perspective. 

e. The third meeting brought everyone together to share resources and share ideas. The process 
throughout the year created the feeling that help was available. Links will continue. A bank of 
examination questions will be set up and teachers will moderate marking.  All resources will be 

Page 47



4

available on the website. There will be meetings with Lynda Maddock, WJEC subject officer, 
and with other lead practitioners from Wales. 

Mefys thanked the dedicated teachers for their participation and collaboration.  She acknowledged 
SACREs had supported the work of the lead practitioners.

Discussion following the presentation:

VT thanked Mefys for all the hard work and shared resources. Mefys was aware that some schools are 
delivering full course RS in one hour a week. She felt lucky that time is given to RE in her school. She 
expressed concern that teachers had been expected to create their own resources while waiting for the 
official resources to arrive. She said that the workload of teachers is massive. MP said that it had been a 
pleasure to listen to what Mefys had to say and that it was clear in ERW that there is a lack of material 
provided in Welsh. Mary expressed her gratitude for the translated resources being made available. 
Mefys said that they had written to Heads thanking them for releasing and supporting teachers. She 
informed WASACRE that there will be a conference for the whole of Wales on 23rd September.  A 
WASACRE member thanked Welsh Government for providing the opportunities and funding for this 
work. 

7. Cyflwyniad WASACRE/WASACRE presentation:  Religious Education from a European 
perspective. – Phil Lord 

PL has had the privilege to work with EfTRE, who meet once a year to discuss RE issues across Europe. 
PL sits on the Executive committee of EfTRE which is open to all countries in the Council of Europe, 
the 47 member states who have signed the Convention of Human Rights of the European Court of 
Human Rights. PL has been surprised at how different countries approach RE. Some teach from a 
phenomenological viewpoint, but in Europe RE is generally confessional and one religion is generally 
taught. One of the benefits of RE is to bring about tolerance and understanding of others. In 2009 a study 
on the way religion is presented across Europe was carried out. Whether confessional or non-
confessional, RE is a good driver for tolerance and community cohesion. However, the Council of 
Europe felt that a move towards a multi- religious approach would be better in order to bring 
communities together. In 2014 the Council of Europe published the Signposts document to bring 
commonality in RE. The European Forum for the Teachers of RE put teaching packs together with a 
focus upon multi-cultural aspects of RE. 

PL gave an overview of RE in Finland and Austria. He had visited primary and secondary schools in 
Finland where RE is generally of the Lutheran tradition but is non-confessional. Parents can request RE 
in their own tradition. Secondary school teachers are required to have a Master’s Degree and are given a 
lot of respect as professionals. All advice on RE comes through the Church and is faith based. Early 
years education is about play and there is no formal transition between pre and statutory schooling. PL 
observed a secondary school exploring Lutheran History. Teachers set the activity and pupils got on with 
it.  They knew what they had to do. Independent learning was clearly evident in the high school. Phil 
talked about the demographics of Austria in comparison to Wales. He referred to a video about RE 
across Europe which can be found on the EfTRE website (http://www.eftre.net/). RE in Austria is 
compulsory and confessional Roman Catholic, but schools have to provide Protestant education to those 
who request it. In addition Phil visited an Islamic RE training centre. More pupils and now opting out of 
confessional RE and those that do so are offered Ethics lessons instead.  Denise Cush was in attendance 
at the conference talking about the religious landscape in Europe. She also spoke about how restrictive it 
is to teach just one religion. The purpose of RE differs depending upon where you are in Europe. One of 
the purposes of RE in UK including Wales is to create opportunities for multiculturalism and diversity. 
PL suggested that we need to have these discussions when designing new curriculum. 

Questions:

GV had also attended the EFtRE conference and reported that although RE in Europe was confessional 
RE pupils would still learn about other faiths as well. 

Page 48

http://www.eftre.net/


5

8. Diweddariadau/Updates: 
i. Canllawiau ar Reoli Hawl Tynnu'n ôl o Addysg Grefyddol/ Guidance on Managing the Right of 

Withdrawal from Religious Education.
GV reported that the document was finished but has been for translation. GV had sent the translated 
document to RT to proofread. RT said that the content drew him in and that the translation was 
excellent. 

ii. Materion Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government matters – 
PW reported that the RE planning meeting on 27/3/17 to discuss the development to the new 
Humanities Curriculum had been very positive.  WASACRE and NAPfRE representatives raised 
concerns with Welsh Government about RE being left out of the curriculum at Foundation Phase 
during the last curriculum review and that it is important to avoid the same things happening this 
time. They raised the issue of the right of withdrawal from RE and suggested that RE needed to be 
identifiable in the curriculum if legislation on withdrawal is to remain. Welsh Government requested 
a copy of the WASACRE withdrawal document to help them identify issues that this could raise. 
Manon Jones produced a timeline to show how the planning of the Humanities AoLE would develop 
over the academic year and so that regular meetings with WASACRE/NAPfRE could be scheduled. 
Welsh Government requested information on the procedure for commissioning work from 
WASACRE. Welsh Government expressed an interest in commissioning a paper from WASACRE 
on how ‘What is Good RE?’ fits with the work pioneers were doing. The pioneers would be looking 
at a number of approaches, including the approach of the Big Ideas Science model. 
WASACRE/NAPfRE representatives were invited to attend a Humanities pioneer group workshop to 
contribute to discussions about the group’s proposals regarding the scope and structure of the 
Humanities AoLE from an RE perspective. Representatives raised the issue of assessment and the 
concern that the new GCSE specifications did not seem to align with Donaldson’s Successful 
Futures. Welsh Government confirmed that Qualifications Wales would be involved throughout the 
process of developing the new curriculum.  Curriculum developments will be shared via a newsletter 
to SACREs which will be sent from WG to SACRE clerks. SACREs will be able to then respond to 
the Newsletter by email to Manon Jones. Paula Webber as Secretary to WASACRE is to be copied 
into responses.  

MP said that the pioneers were currently working on strand 2 of curriculum development. 
WASACRE/NAPfRE representatives have attended meetings with teachers from pioneer schools. 
This group have been discussing a common way forward. Once this is officially decided WASACRE 
representatives will receive the agreed proposals. Planning on the way ahead will carry on over the 
summer period.  In September Strand 3 will look at the content of the Humanities AoLE. 

Discussion from members also raised the following issues:

SACREs will have to adopt the new curriculum if there is no change in legislation.  There may not 
be a need to change the legislation; however, changes to legislation could be positive as well as 
negative. Change could also support good RE. It was positive that WASACRE was able to work 
together with Welsh Government in order to develop a curriculum that works for RE. 

iii. RE stakeholder meeting 12/4/17 
A concern was raised that the term Religious Education would be removed from the new curriculum 
and that RE would be absorbed with the Humanities completely.    PL said that Manon did not 
confirm or discount this, however RE skills would certainly need to be identifiable within the new 
curriculum.  

Humanities AOLE group meeting 02/05/17- Report by BJ. MP and BJ attended the meeting of 
teachers from pioneer schools in Wrexham as observers. The teachers were at the beginning of the 
process and were asked to ‘define humanities.’ They also looked at the current curriculum, content 

Page 49



6

and skills and discussed whether there were aspects worth keeping. Teachers were also invited to 
identify the major things pupils needed to know by the time they reached the age of 16. This 
approach has developed from Science Big Ideas. So teachers were asking - What are the major Big 
Ideas for RE? What is important in RE and how can we share these ideas? 

iv.  New Curriculum Stakeholder meeting 24/5/17 – PL reported that assessment procedures currently 
create competition that is detrimental to the child. Problems arise when students want to transfer 
schools. If they are not attaining assessment grades Headteachers sometimes don’t want them in the 
school. PL reported that with the development of the Donaldson Successful Futures curriculum the 
eyes of the world are looking at Wales. He explained that no education system in the world has 
changed this significantly. Therefore, Welsh Government wants to get this right. PL felt that Manon 
Jones and Steve Davies were sincere in wanting to create an inclusive, teacher led, bottom up 
system.  VT commented that it is, therefore, important it is to have Manon Jones present at 
WASACRE meetings. 

v. Meeting with Estyn 05/06/17 - VT reported that the meeting had been requested by WASACRE and 
NAPfRE and that four HMI had attended. She said that the meeting had been positive and mutually 
beneficial.  Representatives enquired about the thematic review of RE. There will be a specific report 
produced by three HMI and one peer inspector. Mark Campion will have an editing role. Between 
twenty and twenty-one schools will be included and visits to schools will be made. The focus will be 
upon standards and provision; assessment; links with the community (community cohesion) and 
staffing of RE.  The team will also look at preparation for the Four Purposes as well as transition 
between Primary and Secondary.  If the inspectors see non-fulfilment of the statutory requirements 
for RE they will definitely take it up with the school.  Upon WASACRE representative’s suggestion, 
Estyn officers agreed to consider whether provision at Foundation Phase appropriately lays the 
foundation for work at KS2.  Additionally, there will be a review of the Foundation Phase and at the 
suggestion of WASACRE representatives, Estyn officers agreed to ensure that  RE will be included 
in that review alongside other areas of learning.   WASACRE was asked to let Estyn know of 
schools that have good practice in RE. 

Representatives explained how monitoring of RE was conducted by SACREs in order to fulfil their 
monitoring role and that it was becoming more difficult now to get evidence to provide a baseline on 
RE in schools especially with System Leaders having little or no responsibility for subjects e.g. RE.  
They discussed the importance of Estyn reports in this process. It was noted that there are more 
instances of inspectors noting in primary school reports, fulfilment or non fulfilment of statutory 
requirements for RE, than there were in secondary schools reports.  Estyn officers confirmed that the 
same criteria for primary and secondary should be followed and thanked the delegation for bringing 
this to their attention and agreed they will look more closely at this issue. 

Issues at KS4 were also discussed, including timetables being squeezed due to the Welsh 
Baccalaureate.  Schools find they have insufficient time available to meet requirements of the agreed 
syllabus. Representatives enquired whether there was a way that Estyn and WASACRE could work 
together to halt this diminishing status of RE. 

Estyn suggested that individual Advisers/ SACREs or LAs can ‘tip them off’ to good practice in 
schools or refer to schools which are not following statutory requirements. The delegation and Estyn 
also felt that really it was the place of the LA to inform Estyn of this in their LA Report before a 
school is inspected. In reality, Estyn’s experience has led to an acceptance that LAs are unlikely to 
identify schools in this way as it does compromise good working relationships with schools.  GV 
suggested this was an area of real concern and a dilemma which should be given further 
consideration.  

Page 50



7

Representatives asked whether through the new Inspection Framework Estyn reports would continue 
to give qualitative statements in terms of SMSC. It was confirmed that this was the case.  It was also 
noted that the new Framework will have an additional focus in different schools and that RE may be 
the focus in some schools. 

Discussion with Estyn also included the role of RE in promoting community cohesion. WASACRE 
raised its concerns about withdrawal from RE sometimes being linked to reasons of prejudice. Estyn 
informed WASACRE that Mark Campion is heading up reporting on Prevent.

 An Estyn representative suggested that there was a need for teachers to have training about religions 
from meeting with faith representatives.  GV referred to one LA which is currently planning this type 
of training opportunity.  We will consider how widely this could be shared and whether this could be 
facilitated by WASACRE and if there are any funding streams available.  

PL acknowledged that it is good that WASACRE has a positive relationship with Estyn.

ACTION: To discuss funding of training at the next Executive Meeting. 

9.  Adroddiad ar gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Gwaith a gynhaliwyd ar Mai 19, 2017/ Report from the 
Executive Committee held on 19 May 2017 

WASACRE members received the draft report from the Executive Committee Meeting. 

P2. Protocol for people doing work for WASACRE. WASACRE will publish the intention of 
commissioning on the Website. PL explained the commissioning process. Copyright was also 
discussed. This process is to be passed in Autumn Executive meeting. 

Training opportunities will be discussed in the Autumn meeting of the Executive Committee.  

WASACRE received correspondence from Christine Abbas which was discussed in the Executive 
meeting. PL has sent a response, and a discussion ensued. There is a growing concern that religious 
groups that were once included in the creation of an agreed syllabus are increasingly feeling 
marginalised.  GV suggested that this could be something discussed by the executive.  

PL informed members that the WASACRE Website – will be on the autumn agenda. RT raised the 
issue that not all documents commissioned by WASACRE were on the Website. 

Action: The whereabouts of the missing documents will be investigated. 
10. Gohebiaeth /Correspondence

i.  WASACE received a request from the Education Workforce Committee for a member to apply to sit 
on the committee. They have until 21 July to apply. 

ii. Interfaith Network UK – advertising events. SACREs will receive this in the future. Interfaith week 
is 12-19th November. 

iii. WASACRE received a request for information from Alun Charles, the co-ordinator of a church 
magazine in Carmarthenshire, concerning withdrawals from collective worship in Wales.

It was also noted that Edward Evans is currently writing a paper concerning collective worship for 
discussion at the next Executive Committee meeting.  

ACTION: PL to phone Alun Charles.
iv.  Correspondence from Annette Daly giving her apologies and expressing concern about Humanist 

representation on SACREs. Officers noted that this issue has been discussed in recent meetings of 
WASACRE and the he legal situation remains the same.  

11. U.F.A. / A.O.B.

Page 51



8

i. ‘Show and Tell’ - GV spoke about her new book, Puddles and the St Francis Service, which is 
currently with the printer. This resource is appropriate for Animal Welfare Sunday on 8th October. 
Gill has been matching RE with the Foundation Phase Areas of Learning and popular topics or 
themes.  Electronic classroom resources have now been added. Additionally, Gill is vetting and 
selecting non-fiction books because she has found inaccuracies and misinformation within some 
published books.  She is concerned that non-specialists might not be aware of these errors. Therefore, 
Gill will be putting the vetted resources onto her website.  GV enquired whether we could reinstate 
Show and Tell as a regular feature of WASACRE meetings.

ii. Humanists for UK have put on a free course for teachers in London. AL has contacted them to ask 
whether there can be a conference organized in Wales.

12. Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  Dydd Gwener 10 Tachwedd, 2017 / Date for next meeting: Bridgend 
Autumn  Friday 10th November, 2017.  At the Civic Centre. 

Spring Meeting March 9th Civic Centre in Swansea. 

Page 52



HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY 2018

Holocaust Memorial Day is an annual event that takes place on January 27th. HMD 
was established in the UK in 2000 and the first HMD was held in January 2001. 
January 27th marks the anniversary of the liberation of Auschwitz- Birkenhau 
concentration camp by soviet troops in 1945. Holocaust Memorial Day seeks to 
change the future by learning from and remembering the past. Schools are 
encouraged to participate in Holocaust Memorial Day in order to remember the 
victims of the Holocaust and more recent genocides. It provides a framework to 
explore issues of morality, human reactions, individual experiences, responsibilities 
and larger questions of the role of governments and democracies. The government, 
including the Welsh Government, encourages schools and LAs to commemorate this 
event in some way. 

Each year, the Holocaust Memorial Day Trust chooses a different theme to enable 
audiences on Holocaust Memorial Day (HMD) to learn something new about the 
past, and to make it easier for HMD activity organisers to create fresh and engaging 
activities. Every theme is relevant to the Holocaust, Nazi Persecution and to each 
subsequent genocide, and has the life stories of those who were murdered and those 
who survived at its heart – as well as the experiences of resisters, rescuers and 
witnesses.

The Holocaust Memorial Day Trust produces materials specific to the theme of 
Holocaust Memorial Day. 

The power of words is the theme for Holocaust Memorial Day 2018. 

Words can make a difference – both for good and evil. 

Spoken and written words from individuals, corporations, community organisations or 
the state, can have a huge impact, whether good or bad. This theme explores how 
language has been used in the past, and how it is used in the present day. HMD 
activities can focus on the impact that words had in the Holocaust and subsequent 
genocides, through propaganda used to incite, through slogans written in resistance, 
and through memoirs written to record and respond to what was going on. The words 
that we see and hear all around us today – in newspapers, online, in conversations – 
the words that we chose to use, all have an impact upon us and those around us.

Further information about the theme and free educational resources containing 
material suitable for primary to post 16 students is available online at 
http://education.hmd.org.uk 

Additionally, Richard Spencer has been recently been appointed Support Worker for 
Wales for the Holocaust Memorial Trust. He will be on hand to support those wish to 
organize an event to commemorate HMD 2018. The national Trust will be launching 
a range of engaging, free resources on September 13th and schools and colleges 
will be able to order materials either from the London office, or through Richard.

Richard can be contacted on Tel: 07535 524334 or by email at 
Richard.wales@hmd.org.uk             

Page 53

Agenda Item 16

http://education.hmd.org.uk/
mailto:Richard.wales@hmd.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Thursday 19 October 10am - 1pm 

Environment Centre, Pier Street 

SA1 1RY  

Book your free place online now at www.hmd.org.uk/workshops 

Are you interested in getting involved with Holocaust Memorial Day 2018? 

Would you like support organising an activity in your area?  
 

Our free workshops offer guidance to those wanting to know more about marking Holocaust 

Memorial Day (HMD) and are aimed at new and existing activity organisers from schools, 

local authorities, voluntary/community groups, trade unions, prisons and many other 

organisations. 

Attending a workshop will help you to gain a better understanding of HMD and how to create 

a meaningful activity for your audience. During the session you’ll learn more about this year’s 

theme, The power of words and the free resources we provide that will help you to mark 

HMD in your community. We’ll discuss the practicalities of organising events, participate in 

interactive activities and networking sessions and share ideas with other people organising 

activities for HMD 2018.  

Holocaust Memorial Day Trust is the charity that promotes and supports HMD across the UK. 

If you have any questions please get in touch with us at enquiries@hmd.org.uk 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Visits and Visitors 

 
 

in 
 

Religious Education 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Produced for 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
 
 
 
Updated May 2017  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 17



2 

 

Visiting Places of Worship in Religious Education 
 
Schools are encouraged to use this guide in conjunction with EVOLVE.    
Evaluations of visits to places of worship submitted to EVOLVE will greatly support other 
schools in determining which places are most suitable to visit and of any points to 
consider in preparation and planning for a visit. 
 
Should any details of contacts in this guide be found in need of updating, please advise 
the clerk to SACRE so that we might keep this guide as up to date as possible for the 
benefit of all who use it.  
 
The use of visits add another dimension to RE by providing pupils with the opportunity of 
experiencing religion as a living part of the community.  Possible places for RE visits 
include religious places of worship, places of pilgrimage, places of religious interest, 
exhibitions and events in museums or exhibition centres.  
 
Developing a relationship 
Many schools have found that the value of visits and visitors is greatly enhanced when a 
relationship is developed with a particular place of worship and the faith community that 
uses it. An ongoing relationship makes planning much easier; means that school and 
faith community alike know much better what to expect and how best to plan. 
Experience from one visit or visitor can be used to improve the next. 
 
Planning a visit 
Clearly, whenever a teacher plans a visit careful preparations should be made.  
 

 The objective of the visit must be clear. The teacher must identify the purpose of 
the visit, and what the children are expected to learn from it. The experience must be 
suitable for the pupils’ age, ability and interests.  The objectives should be 
communicated to the faith community being visited, so that their preparations can be 
appropriate. Some faith communities will have people who can take an active part in 
the visit; others may be less confident about doing so or not be aware of what would 
be appropriate. Make sure that the potential for involvement is ascertained and 
discussed in advance. 

 

 A pre-visit is suggested. It is important that teachers are familiar with the location 
and with the members of the faith community who will be welcoming the visit. During 
this visit teachers can note items of specific interest so that activities or trails can be 
prepared for the pupils. They can also conduct a risk assessment.  

 

 Dress code - pupils should be prepared beforehand that some places of worship 
may require a dress code e.g. wearing of a head covering and the removal of shoes. 

  

 Behaviour - pupils need to be aware that it would be considered disrespectful to 
chew or wander around or touch things without invitation.  Moving quietly and 
respectfully is essential in a place of worship especially where people may be 
coming in and out for private prayer.  

 
 

Page 58



3 

 
 
 
The visit 
 

Teachers should ensure: 
  

 a balance between items of specific interest and giving pupils the freedom to explore 
the building to satisfy their own interest; 

 

 that pupils are given the opportunity to reflect and experience the atmosphere; 
 

 that pupils are active participants during the visit. They should be encouraged to 
investigate and discover things for themselves; and 

  

 that the visit can be a sensory experience with pupils given opportunities to touch, 
smell, and taste as well as to listen and see.  

 
 
 
Follow–up work  
 
During follow-up work pupils should have the opportunity to focus upon particular 
aspects of what they have experienced.  They can generate their own questions that 
they would like to be answered. Pupils can find further information from reference books, 
websites, CD ROMs and other relevant resources. They can express their ideas through 
music and dance, arts and craft, role play, poetry and prose. They could also share their 
experiences with others through a school assembly.  
 
 
 
Creative possibilities for preparation and follow-up 
 

 A member of the church, with experience of children and young people, might be 
able to talk to the children from a first-hand understanding about key objects or 
beliefs. 

 

 Members might be willing to be interviewed by the teacher about their  
personal experiences of being part of the faith community. Some have very 
interesting stories to tell.  

 

 If the school has a media studies department they could create a film about the 
faith community, building and some of its members and their beliefs, which could 
then be used within the school or community. 

 

 Art, music and drama departments could also be involved in discovering and 
telling the story of not just the building but also the lives and history of its 
members and how they relate their faith to their everyday life. 

 

Page 59



4 

 Some faith communities have strong links with similar faith groups across the 
world. Increasingly some churches, for instance, are engaging in exchange visits 
with African churches. As these exchanges often involve a mix of social and 
spiritual activities, exploring these visits might open up a whole new area of study 
looking at faith, not just as what happens in the church or mosque etc but how 
faith influences lifestyle. These groups often involve young people who might 
resonate more with the pupils.  
 

 Some churches / chapels might be willing to demonstrate a wedding or baptism in 
their building. This could launch or be the highlight of a variety of lessons on rites 
of passage.  

 
 

Page 60



5 

 Visitors  
 

 
Inviting visitors to school can be a valuable experience for pupils. It is the school’s 
prerogative to decide who they invite to visit. A key objective would be to ensure that the 
visitor provides a worthwhile educational experience for pupils.  
 
Like visits, arranging for visitors to contribute to religious education or collective worship 
needs careful planning. The criteria and content for visitors’ contributions will be different 
for collective worship, on the one hand, and an RE lesson, on the other. It is important 
that the school and the visitor understand this distinction. 
 
Selecting a visitor 
 
Visitors could include:  

 Leaders of faith communities; 

 Members of faith communities; 

 Members of local organizations; 

 Aid agencies; 

 People who have recently visited a country which has religious or moral significance; 
and 

 Overseas visitors who are visiting a local faith community. 
 
 
Planning the visit 
 
Whether for collective worship or RE, ensure the visitor is briefed on the following:  

 the purpose of the visit;   

 the age and ability of the pupils; 

 the time allocated for the visit and what you hope will be achieved in the given 
time; and 

 travelling instructions and plan of school campus. 
 

 
Ensure that the visitor is aware that the school visit must not be used in order to 
impose their personal views upon pupils. The speaker must not denigrate other 
faiths or organisations in an attempt to promote their own.  
Visitors from overseas, in particular, may come from countries where expectations are 
different. If direct briefing is not possible in advance, it is important that a trusted local 
contact be involved who is familiar with and can explain policy and practice in schools. 
It is your responsibility to do what you can to ensure that the visitor is likely to offer the 
quality of experience that you and the pupils expect. Ideally, you should meet the visitor 
in person prior to the visit. If in doubt, seek advice from a neighbouring school or a 
trusted member of the faith community concerned. 
 
 

Page 61



6 

 
 
Preparation of pupils for visitors to an RE lesson 
 
Prepare the pupils so that the visit is understood in its context.  

 Discuss with the visitor where the visitor’s contribution fits into the overall scheme of 
work and what the pupils already know about the topic to be discussed. 

 Classwork prior to the visit should in some way relate to the theme of the visitor’s 
presentation.  

 Pupils should be encouraged to prepare questions to ask the visitor.  

 Inform the class about behaving respectfully towards visitors and any artefacts they 
might use.  

 
 
The day of the visit 
 

 Plan the day carefully in order to allow adequate time to carry out any preparations 
e.g. arranging the classroom, setting up equipment. 

 

 Arrange for a car parking place to be kept (if necessary), and for a designated 
person to meet the visitor on arrival, to offer refreshments or toilet facilities as 
needed, and try to ensure that the visitor feels at ease.  

 

 The teacher should remain in the classroom during the lesson. The teacher needs to 
be in control of the session and can prompt pupils or the speaker to ensure that the 
discussion is relevant and that the objectives of the visit are achieved.  

 

 At the end of the lesson, thank the visitor and ensure that they can leave the 
premises safely. 

 

 A follow up letter from teacher and pupils would be appreciated.   
 
 
General points 
 
Always keep careful records of all visitors – note the telephone numbers, addresses and 
how the visit went. 
 
Remember to pass any point of interest to other RE teachers.  
 
Where possible keep evidence of the visit. Log the visit on the EVOLVE system to assist 
in arranging your own future visits and to benefit other schools. You might like to take 
photographs of the lessons or even make a video. Ensure that the visitor is consulted 
beforehand regarding this matter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



7 

 

Arranging a visit or visitor: useful contact addresses 

 
 
 

                                  
                                               BAHÁ’Í  
 
 
 
 
 
 
For possible visit to schools: 
 
Vale of Glamorgan SACRE member:  Dr Ramez Delpak  Tel: 01446 771053        
 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Blaenau Gwent SACRE Member:  Mrs Christine Abbas    Tel: Tel: 01495 291784 
 
Email: rabbas4280@aol.com 
 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Monmouthshire SACRE Member :   Mrs Sue Cave  Tel: 01291 623402 
 
Email: sue.cave@btopenworld.com 
 

Sue has experience of working with nursery age children and was a former playgroup 
leader.  She is willing to read / tell stories, sing and talk with the children about shared 
morals and values across religions. 
Sue is also willing to work with KS2 and older pupils and can provide an educational 
workshop on ‘Virtues and Values’. 
 

  ----------------------------------------------- 
 
For possible visit to secondary schools: 
 

 
Mrs Roya Azordegan 
 
Tel: 01600 860413 
 
 

 

Page 63

mailto:rabbas4280@aol.com
mailto:sue.cave@btopenworld.com


8 

 

                                          
                                                               

                                                              BUDDHISM 
 
 
 
 
 
Cardiff Buddhist Centre  
12 St. Peter`s Street 
Roath, 
Cardiff 
CF24 3BA 
 
Tel: 029  20462492 
Contact name: Sue Sheppard  - Centre Coordinator 
 
Website: www.cardiffbuddhistcentre.com  
E-mail: connect@cardiffbuddhistcentre.com  
 
Additional Information:  
Open to public 11 - 2pm, Wednesdays only. There is a library of Buddhist books, a 
bookshop and an emporium which sells incense, Buddhist figures and other Buddhist 
items. 
Above information from website. 
 
School visits are welcome. A maximum of 30 pupils is recommended. If a larger cohort 
of pupils wishes to visit, the Buddhist Centre is able to visit those schools. 
Each visit lasts approximately 2 hours and the centre requests that pupils bring a series 
of pre – prepared questions to pose. 
A donation of £40 is requested. Order Member Sarana Siri operates school visits. 
 
Information obtained from Sue Sheppard 01/11/2016 
 
Last updated November 2016 
 
 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 64

http://www.cardiffbuddhistcentre.com/
mailto:connect@cardiffbuddhistcentre.com


9 

Lam Rim Buddhist Centre 
Pentwyn Manor 
Penrhos 
Nr Raglan 
Usk 
Monmouthshire.  
NP15 2LE 
 
Tel: 01600 780 383 
Website: www.lamrim.org.uk  
Contact: Margaret Travis  margaret@lamrim.org.uk  
 
Additional Information: 
School visits are normally either half day am or pm, or full day sessions.  
KS2 topics supported include caring for the environment, belonging to a community, 
worship and meditation. 
KS3 topics include Buddhism as a focused religion. 
GCSE/A Level - provides a deeper insight into the Buddhist way of life. 
 
Above information sourced from website. 
 
Last updated November 2016 

 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Aro Ling Cardiff 
35 Merthyr Road 
Whitchurch 
Cardiff 
CF14 1DB                       or 
 
The Centre can only accommodate ten visitors at a time.  
 
Website: http://aro-ling.org/cardiff/ 
Tel: 07875 716644  
E-mail: aro.ling.cardiff@gmail.com 
E-mail: enquiry@aro-ling.org 
Contact person: Ngakma Nor’dzin Pamo 
 
Above information sourced from website. 
 
Last updated November 2016 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Court Close, 
Whitchurch 
Cardiff 
CF14 1JA 
 

Page 65

http://www.lamrim.org.uk/
mailto:margaret@lamrim.org.uk
mailto:aro.ling.cardiff@gmail.com


10 

     
 
 
 
 
 

Schools are encouraged to establish good links with the variety of Christian 
denominations accessible in their immediate locality.  
 
 
 

Llandaff Cathedral 
Llandaff 
CARDIFF 
CF5 2YF 
Cathedral office: 029 20564554 (open 9:30am – 4:00pm Mon - Fri) 
E-mail: Office@llandaffcathedral.org.uk 
Website: www.llandaffcathedral.org.uk 
 
Additional Information: 
There are dedicated school tour guides. The duration of school tours are approximately 
45 minutes to 1 hour. As much notice as possible, with a minimum of one month, is 
required for school visits given that Llandaff is a working cathedral. A maximum of 30 
children per visit is recommended although smaller groups benefit from an improved 
experience. 
The cathedral provides age and year group appropriate workbooks to support school 
visits.  Year 6 “Meet the Bishop” sessions are run by the Bishop of Landaff at the 
Cathedral.   
The cathedral does not have staff available to visit schools. 
The cathedral welcomes donations if school funds allow, however, this should not 
prohibit visits. 
 
Information obtained from website and following conversation with Nicola at Landaff 
Cathedral Office 
 
Last updated November 2016  

----------------------------------------------- 
 
St Woolos Cathedral 
Stow Hill,  
Newport  
NP20 4EA 
Contact: 01633 412742 
Sian King Cathedral Administrator: 07933 627 594 

Email: enquiries@newportcathedral.org.uk 

Website: www.newportcathedral.org.uk 

 

St Woolos welcomes school visits and can accommodate several classes at a time. 
Pupils are provided with a Cathedral Trail booklet.  School visits can be arranged by 
contacting Canon Jennifer Mole on: 01633 258556 or by email: 
revcanjen63@btinternet.com 
Last updated  January 2017 

 

CHRISTIANITY 
 

Page 66

mailto:Office@llandaffcathedral.org.uk
http://www.llandaffcathedral.org.uk/
http://newportcathedral.org.uk/
http://www.newportcathedral.org.uk/


11 

St David’s Cathedral 
Tŷ’r Pererin 
Quickwell Hill 
St Davids 
SA62 6RJ 
 
Telephone: 01437 729151 
Contacts:  
Janet Ingram - Education & Pilgrimage Officer 
Clare Williams - Assistant Education & Pilgrimage Officer  
Email: education@stdavidscathedral.org.uk 
Website: www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk 
 
Additional Information: 
The cathedral offers pilgrimage days during the academic year. School visits are 
welcomed and can be accommodated at the following times: 
Morning visits: 10am - 12noon 
Afternoon visits: 12noon - 2:30pm 
Full day visits: 10am - 2:30pm 
 
The cathedral is happy to adapt activities to meet the needs of pupils with Special 
Educational Needs, if sufficient notice is provided. All resources required to complete 
activities will be provided. 
 
Visits are chargeable at £2.50 per pupil for a full day visit and £1.50 per pupil for half day 
visits. 
48 hour residential visits are also available at a cost of £38 per pupil staying in the “Bunk 
Barn”. Residential visits include storytelling and outdoor activities. A maximum of 90 
pupils can be accommodated. 
 
The cathedral also runs Cathedral Explorers Trails on Tuesdays during school holidays. 
 
The Education & Pilgrimage Officer may collaborate with Llandaff Cathedral to create 
“Make a Pilgrimage” days for Cardiff schools. Additional is information available on  
request. 
 
Last updated November 2016 

 
----------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 67

mailto:education@stdavidscathedral.org.uk
http://www.stdavidscathedral.org.uk/


12 

 
   HINDUISM 
 
 
 
Shree Swaminarayan Temple 
4, Merches Place 
Grangetown 
Cardiff 
CF11 6RD 
 
Tel: 029 20371128 
Website: www.swaminarayanwales.org.uk 
Email: info@swaminarayanwales.org.uk 
 
Additional information: 
Only morning school visits can be accommodated, by prior arrangement. Visits last for 
approximately 1 hour 15 minutes. 
Visits consist of: 
“Description and handling of religious artefacts 
Playing traditional Indian musical instruments 
Demonstrating “yoga” 
Different symbols 
Worksheets to accommodate school syllabus. 
Hindu greetings and morning activities at home” 
 
Activities listed above as stated on website 
 
Last updated November 2016  

 
----------------------------------------------- 

 
 
Shree Kutchi Leva Patel Samaj 
Mardy Street 
Grangetown 
Cardiff 
Tel: 02920 372032 

 
 
 

 

Page 68

http://www.swaminarayanwales.org.uk/
mailto:info@swaminarayanwales.org.uk


13 

 
         

Cardiff New Synagogue (Reform) 
Moira Terrace 
Cardiff 
CF2 0EJ 
 
Tel: 029 20491689 
Contact: Louise Fuller 
Email: schools@cardiffreformsyn.org.uk 
Mob: 0771467781 
Website:  www.cardiffreformsyn.org.uk 
 
Additional information:  
The synagogue requires at least six week’s notice of a visit. Visits usually take place on 
a Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday morning.  
Visits are not recommended for pupils under 6 years. 
The duration of visits is approximately 1 to 1hr 30 mins. Visitors can choose to receive a 
generic overview of the synagogue or following prior discussion with the visiting school’s 
RE Coordinator visits can be tailored to meet the school’s requirements. Activities 
include; holding a mock Jewish wedding, a discussion on festivals, writing in Hebrew 
and exploring Jewish life at home. 
 
A maximum of 65 pupils is recommended. 
A payment of £35 to cover the running costs of the synagogue is requested.  
 
Teachers are also welcome to attend the Saturday morning service at the synagogue 
prior to visiting with their pupils. Should teachers wish to attend prior notice must be 
provided to Louise Fulller and proof of identification presented at the synagogue. 
 
Last updated November 2016 

 
----------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

JUDAISM 
 

Page 69



14 

 
Cardiff United Synagogue (Orthodox), 
Cyncoed Gardens, 
Cyncoed Road, 
Cardiff 
 
Office Tel: 029 20473728 
Website: www.cardiffshul.org   
 

Synagogue Office: 

Ray Lawrence c.u.s@btinternet.com 

 

Rabbi Rose  rabbi@cardiffshul.org 

 

Additional information: 

Schools are most welcome to visit and visits are encouraged. Visitors to the Cardiff 

United Synagogue will gain an insight into the Jewish way of life and the history of 

Jewish communities and synagogues in Cardiff. 

 

The synagogue accepts school visits on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays at a 

cost of £1 per pupil or £25 whichever is greater. A maximum of 90 visitors can be 

accommodated at any one time.  

Visits normally commence at 10:30 and last approximately for 1 hour to 1 hour 15 

minutes.  

 

Last updated January 2017  

 

----------------------------------------------- 

 

 
 

  

Page 70

http://www.cardiffshul.org/
mailto:c.u.s@btinternet.com
mailto:rabbi@cardiffshul.org


15 

           ISLAM 
 
 
 
 
South Wales Islamic Centre 
9, Alice Street 
Butetown 
Cardiff. CF10 5LB 
Tel: 029 20460243 
Website: southwalesislamiccentre.com 
Email: info@southwalesislamiccentre.com 

 

 

----------------------------------------------- 
 

 
Dar – Ul – Isra Muslim Welfare and Education Centre 
21 – 23 Wyverne Road 
Cathays 
Cardiff 
CF24 4BG 
Tel: 029 2034 4073 
Email: secretary@darulisra.org.uk 
 
 
The mosque holds frequent open days and welcomes school visits. There is an 
excellent display answering common misconceptions about Islam.  
Please visit the link below for insight into school visits and open days.  
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-south-east-wales-32530762 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Jamia Masjid – Bilal 
63 Severn Road 
Canton 
Cardiff.  
Tel: 029 20 397640 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
Mosque Islamic Shikka Propieshtan 
37 Plantagenet Street 
Riverside  
Cardiff. CF1 8RF 
Tel: 029 20221309 
 
 
 

 

Page 71

mailto:info@southwalesislamiccentre.com
mailto:secretary@darulisra.org.uk
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-south-east-wales-32530762


16 

Shah Jalal Mosque and Islamic Cultural Centre 
3, Crwys Road 
Cathays 
Cardiff 
Tel: 029 20480217 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
 
Muslim Welfare Association of the Vale of Glamorgan 
Mosque 
332 Holton Road 
Barry  
CF63 4HX  
Contact person: Moawia Bin-Sufyan 
Email: moawia.binsufyan@gmail.com 

 

 

 

----------------------------------------------- 
 

Berea Masjid  
Berea Cottages,  
Blaina,  
Blaenau Gwent 
NP13 3AD 
 
Tel: 01495 723594 
Dr Muzafar Jilani 
 
Dr Muzafar Jilani and Fatma Jilani 
01873 855565 
jilanifatma@aol.com 
 
Dr Jilani is the Chairman and Imam at Blaina mosque. 
Fatma is the Muslim representative on Monmouthshire SACRE. 
School visits to the mosque are most welcome. 
 
 

 
 
Last updated November 2016  

 
----------------------------------------------- 

 
 
 

Page 72

mailto:moawia.binsufyan@gmail.com
mailto:jilanifatma@aol.com


17 

                        SIKHISM 
 

 
Pearl Street Gurdwara 
212a Pearl Street 
Roath 
Cardiff  
CF24 1RD 
 
Secretary for bookings: Mr Bhogal Tel: 029 20212435/Mob: 07710268593 
Website: http://sikhgurdwaracardiff.com 
E-mail: surinderchanna@hotmail.com  
 
Additional Information: 
Schools are welcome to visit the gurdwara Monday to Friday at no cost.  
Meaningful sessions would last a minimum of 1 hour 30 minutes. 
Pupils will receive a brief introduction to Sikhism. Children will be able to listen to a 
reading from the holy scripture and pupils will learn about how Sikhs worship. 
Refreshments will be provided free of charge, all food will be suitable for vegetarians. 
The gurdwara can accommodate as many pupils as the visiting school teachers 
consider appropriate. 
 
 
Last updated November 2016  

 
 

----------------------------------------------- 
 
Bhatra Sikh Centre 
97-103 Tudor Street 
Riverside 
Cardiff 
CF11 6AE 
 
Tel: 029 20224806 or 029 20256431  
Schools Officer: Mr Bhogal Mob: 07710268593 
Secretary: Jaswant  
 
Additional information:  
The gurdwara welcomes approximately 180 pupils per week. 
Please contact Mr Bhogal to arrange visits as above. 
 
Last updated November 2016  

 
----------------------------------------------- 

Page 73

mailto:surinderchanna@hotmail.com


This page is intentionally left blank



IFN e-bulletin 
September/October 2017  

 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin July/August 2017 1 

Contents 

The e-bulletin can be read by scrolling through. If you prefer to go to a particular section, 
click on its title in Sections. To go directly to an individual item, click on its ‘Read more’ 
link in Items overleaf. 

 
Sections 
Faith and public life updates 
Inter Faith Network for the UK News 
Inter faith projects, programmes and developments 
Resources and study/training 
Calls for information, competitions and nominations 
Jobs, internships and volunteering 
Funding opportunities 
Special Weeks/Days 
Diary dates 
 

 
  

If you have items which you would like considered for inclusion in the next e-bulletin 
please email these to ifnet@interfaith.org.uk by 20 November with ‘e-bulletin’ in the 
subject line. Submissions may be edited for length or style. The e-bulletin is designed 
primarily to flag up new developments and projects and future events. If your 
organisation distributes a programme, newsletter or e-bulletin, please add 
ifnet@interfaith.org.uk to your mailing list. 

Disclaimer: Information in this e-bulletin has been sourced and compiled with care. 
IFN does not take responsibility for accuracy of information supplied by external 
organisations and inclusion of items within this e-bulletin does not imply 
endorsement or validation by IFN of the events, publications or the bodies which have 
produced these. 

Increasingly, IFN is making use of social media, in particular Twitter 
(www.twitter.com/IFNetUK) and Facebook (www.facebook.com/IFNetUK). 

Please take a moment to ‘follow’ and ‘like’ IFN and also Inter Faith Week 
(www.twitter.com/IFWeek and www.facebook.com/IFWeek) and also check in with 
the IFN website to see new items, which are added on a regular basis. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 18



 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 2 

Items 
Faith and public life updates 

Responses to terrorist attacks Read more 
Hate crime Read more 

   Bank of England decision on polymer bank notes Read more 
   NATRE report and RE Read more 
   Commission on Religious Education interim report Read more 
   Equalities updates Read more 
   Lord Bourne tour of places of worship Read more 
Inter Faith Network for the UK News 

Inter Faith Week Read more 
   Meeting of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum Read more 
   Arts and Culture profiles Read more 
   Day event for local inter faith practitioners Read more 
Inter faith projects, programmes and developments 
   Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief: The Leicester Approach Read more 
   Interfaith Scotland Rwanda exchange and youth programme Read more 
   Inter faith charity shop at Selfridges Read more 
   Local authorities and local faith communities Read more 
Resources and study/training 

Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief – Guidance for faith communities Read more 
   Local resources Read more 
   Report on IFN day event for local inter faith practitioners Read more 
   Looking After One Another: The safety and security of our faith communities Read more 
   Let’s Talk: Practical pointers for inter faith dialogue Read more 
   Festival dates Read more 
   St Ethelburga’s young leaders programmes Read more 

London Interfaith Centre course Read more 
Sion Centre for Dialogue and Encounter course Read more 

Calls for information, Competitions and Nominations    
   Faith communities’ work on Sustainable Development Goals Read more 
   Faith Recognition and Celebration Read more 

Involvement of faith communities in World War One and Remembrance Sunday Read 
more 
Inter faith sports projects Read more 
Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service – changes to Courts in England and Wales Read 
more 

Jobs internships and volunteering 
Inter Faith Network for the UK – Clerical Assistant Read more 
Woolf Institute – Alumni and Support Relations Manager Read more 
Home Office – Lead Commissioner for Countering Extremism Read more 
3FF roles Read more 
Heritage Lottery Fund – Committee members Read more 
Inter Faith Network for the UK – Volunteers and Interns Read more 

Funding opportunities 
Near Neighbours grants programme Read more 
Building a Stronger Britain Together programme Read more  

Page 76



 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 3 

   Faiths in Scotland Community Action Fund Read more  
   Supermarket grant schemes Read more 
   Aviva’s UK Community Fund Read more 
   Comic Relief’s Core Strengths grants programme Read more 
   Funding websites Read more 

Heritage Lottery Fund grants to commemorate the First World War Read more 
Community Foundations Read more 
Transform Foundation Read more 

   Google, Microsoft and charities Read more 
   Subsidised fundraising workshops Read more 
Special Weeks/Days 

Dates for Special Weeks and Days taking place throughout the year Read more 
Diary Dates 

Information on some of the inter faith events taking place around the UK Read more 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
FAITH AND PUBLIC LIFE UPDATES 
 
Responses to terrorist attacks  
 
On Friday 15 September 30 people were injured in a terrorist attack on a train at Parsons 
Green underground station in London during rush hour.  Local residents from many 
different backgrounds came to assist those affected by the attack and at national level a 
number of faith bodies responded including the President of the Board of Deputies of 
British Jews https://www.bod.org.uk/board-of-deputies-statement-on-terrorist-attack-at-
parsons-green-station/ and the Muslim Council of Britain http://www.mcb.org.uk/parsons-
green-attack/.   IFN’s Co-Chairs and the Moderators of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum 
issued a statement in response to the attack, which concluded: 
 

 “We re-state in the strongest terms  our  condemnation of terrorism, noting  the toxicity of 
spurious justifications by terrorists on the basis of religious beliefs which they claim to 
espouse. 
 
In recent months, people of all faiths and none have stood together in the face of this kind 
of cowardly aggression.  Let us continue to do so, and let us work with vigour to counter 
narratives of hatred and also to resist division and support all those who face hatred and 
the fear of discrimination due to ignorant or prejudiced minds linking them with terrorist 
attackers.” 

 
Last month, on 17 August there was a major terrorist attack in Barcelona and a related 
attack in Cambrils the following morning.   IFN’s Co-Chairs and the Moderators of IFN’s 
Faith Communities Forum issued a statement in response to these in the context of UK 
inter faith relations. The following day 2 people were killed and 8 wounded in a knife 
attack in the Finnish city of Turku.   IFN’s Co-Chairs included a message about this in a 

Page 77

https://www.bod.org.uk/board-of-deputies-statement-on-terrorist-attack-at-parsons-green-station/
https://www.bod.org.uk/board-of-deputies-statement-on-terrorist-attack-at-parsons-green-station/
http://www.mcb.org.uk/parsons-green-attack/
http://www.mcb.org.uk/parsons-green-attack/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 4 

Circular to member bodies.  The statements and messages can be seen at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/news/statements-and-messages.   
 
 

Back to the top 
 
Hate crime  
  
In the July/August edition of IFN’s E-Bulletin it was noted that there had been an increase 
in reported hate crime attacks in the wake of terrorist attacks in Manchester and London 
in the preceding months.   
 
Levels of hate crime remain at very concerning levels affecting Jewish, Muslim and other 
communities such as the Hindu and Sikh communities.  On 24 September there was a 
knife attack on lay imam Dr Nasser Kurdy near the Altrincham Islamic Cultural Centre.  This 
is still being investigated but is being treated by the police as a hate crime.  A multi faith 
vigil was held at the mosque that evening and there were expressions of support from 
around the UK.  
 
In August, the Crown Prosecution Service published new public statements on how it will 
prosecute hate crime and support victims in England and Wales. This follows consultation 
with community groups and criminal justice partners. In addition to the public statements 
the CPS has also published revised legal guidance that sets out how prosecutors should 
handle hate crime cases in court and make charging decisions. 
  
To mark the publication of the documents, the CPS has also launched a social media 
campaign, #HateCrimeMatters to encourage people to come forward and report hate 
crimes. The new documents can be viewed on the hate crime homepage of the CPS 
website at http://www.cps.gov.uk/news/latest_news/cps-publishes-new-public-
statements. 
 
Also in August, the Community Security Trust in partnership with the Crown Prosecution 
Service and Tell MAMA, and supported by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government, published ‘Hate Crime: A guide for those affected’. The guide provides 
victims of hate crime with guidance and advice on reacting to and reporting hate crime, as 
well as navigating the criminal justice system and understanding the UK courts. The guide 
can be downloaded on the Community Security Trust website at 
https://cst.org.uk/news/blog/2017/08/23/hate-crime-a-guide-to-those-affected.  
 
National Hate Crime Awareness Week takes place from 14 to 21 October. For information 
about the Week, events taking place to mark the Week, and to find out about other ways to 
get involved, visit https://www.stophateuk.org/hate-crime-awareness-week/.  
 
The ceremony of the National No2H8 Crime Awards 2017 takes place on Tuesday 10 
October. The awards aim to highlight the work of those combatting hate crime, and are 
supported by a range of national hate crime agencies. The theme for 2017 is ‘Upstanders 

Page 78

https://www.interfaith.org.uk/news/statements-and-messages
http://www.cps.gov.uk/news/latest_news/cps-publishes-new-public-statements
http://www.cps.gov.uk/news/latest_news/cps-publishes-new-public-statements
https://cst.org.uk/news/blog/2017/08/23/hate-crime-a-guide-to-those-affected
https://www.stophateuk.org/hate-crime-awareness-week/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 5 

not bystanders’.  More information about the awards can be found at 
http://no2h8crimeawards.org/.  
 
The Inter-faith Council for Wales has been looking at the challenges faced by faith 
communities.  One of these was that many people were too scared to report hate crimes.  
IfCW will be holding a meeting to show religious communities what they can do when they 
face hate crime.   

Back to the top 
 
 
Bank of England decision on polymer bank notes 
 
The March/April issue of IFN’s e-bulletin noted that the Bank of England had launched a 
consultation on the new polymer £20 and future print runs of polymer £5 and £10 note in 
the light of concerns by a number of organisations, including Hindu and some other faith 
community bodies, about the manufacturing methods which contained trace amounts of 
chemicals derived from animal products.   
 
The consultation ran until 12 May and the Bank of England published its response on 10 
August.     It said that “after careful and serious consideration and extensive public 
consultation there will be no change to the composition of polymer used for future 
banknotes. The new polymer £20 note and future print runs of £5 and £10 notes will 
continue to be made from polymer manufactured using trace amounts of chemicals, 
typically less than 0.05%, ultimately derived from animal products.” 
 
The full response can be found at 
http://www.bankofengland.co.uk/banknotes/Documents/consultationdecision.pdf and 
the press release at 
http://www.bankofengland.co.uk/publications/Pages/news/2017/052.aspx.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
 
National Association of Teachers of RE report expresses concern about state of RE 
 
On 17 September the National Association of Teachers of Religious Education, in 
collaboration with the RE Council of England and Wales and RE Today Services, published 
its annual ‘State of the Nation’ report. 
 
The report focuses on the provision of RE in England’s secondary schools against the 
backdrop of increased ‘academisation’ of schools – making them independent of their 
local authorities.  All state-funded schools, including academies and free schools, are 
legally required by the 1998 School Standards and Framework Act to provide Religious 
Education as part of a balanced curriculum.   Whilst community and voluntary controlled 
maintained schools have to follow the locally agreed syllabus, schools that have become 

Page 79

http://no2h8crimeawards.org/
http://www.bankofengland.co.uk/banknotes/Documents/consultationdecision.pdf
http://www.bankofengland.co.uk/publications/Pages/news/2017/052.aspx


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 6 

academies do not.  Academies, though, do have to provide RE in accordance with their 
funding agreement.  
 
The report has twelve key findings which highlight a number of issues. These can be 
summarised under the following headings:  Provision - pupils in schools with a religious 
character are likely to have more RE than those in schools or academies without a 
religious character. Pupils in academies are least likely to have RE as part of their 
curriculum; Teachers - in schools and academies with a religious character teachers are 
more likely to be qualified to teach RE. Those in academies without a religious character 
were most likely not to be qualified to teach RE; and Qualifications - the number of schools 
not offering GCSE Religious Studies has risen on the previous year’s figures. Those not 
following an accredited course in RS at Key Stage 4 are unlikely to have any RE at all. 
 
The report makes a number of recommendations for the Department of Education, school 
leaders, including headteachers and governors; Ofsted and one for Parents and Carers.  
The key recommendation is that schools should be held to account by the Department for 
Education and that this should be supported by Ofsted. Schools should ensure that they 
have suitably qualified teachers and that all pupils should have a meaningful entitlement 
to RE in both key stages. Parents and carers should be more proactive in holding their 
children’s schools to account if RE appears to be missing from their curriculum. 
 
The full report can be found, with the press release at 
https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-lose-out-on-
religious-literacy/. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Commission on Religious Education – Interim report 
 
In July 2016 the Religious Education Council of England and Wales established an 
independent Commission on Religious Education (RE) to review the legal, education, and 
policy frameworks for RE in England.  Its aim is to propose a new settlement for RE.  
 
On 20 September the Commission published its Interim Report entitled ‘Religious 
Education for All’.  Among its recommendations are that there should be a national 
entitlement statement for RE which sets out clearly the aims and purpose of RE and what 
pupils should experience in the course of their study of the subject. A draft statement for 
consultation is included in the report. 
 
There are three ways to respond to the Interim Report: 
• An online consultation process will run from mid-October to mid-December 2017. 

Details will be published at www.commissiononre.org.uk and on Twitter at 
https://twitter.com/Commissiononre. 

• A consultation event will take place in late November or early December 2017.   Further 
details of this event will be publicised in due course. 

Page 80

https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-lose-out-on-religious-literacy/
https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-lose-out-on-religious-literacy/
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/
https://twitter.com/Commissiononre


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 7 

• Views can be emailed to evidence@commissiononre.org.uk throughout the next year 
up until the publication of the final report. 

 
There is also a call for case studies in paragraphs 273 to 275 which may be of interest to 
inter faith groups and practitioners. 
 
The Interim Report can be found at http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/09/Commission-on-Religious-Education-Interim-Report-2017.pdf 
and the Executive Summary of the Report at http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2017/09/Executive-Summary-FINAL.pdf 

Back to the top 
 
 
Equalities updates 
 
Rt Hon David Lammy MP has published his final report following his independent review 
into the treatment of, and outcomes for, Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic individuals in the 
criminal justice system. The report can be found at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/lammy-review-final-report in both English 
and Welsh. 
 
The Equality and Diversity Forum, on which IFN has Observer status, has produced a 
number of briefings on the possible impact of Brexit and the European Union (Withdrawal 
Bill) on equality and human rights law in the UK.   The Briefings emphasise both the 
positive aspects and areas where change may be helpful to ensure that relevant 
protections are not undermined.   The briefings can be found at 
http://www.edf.org.uk/our-policy-work/brexit-equality-and-human-rights/. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Lord Bourne tour of places of worship 
 
Lord Bourne of Aberystwyth, Minister for Faith at the Department of Communities and 
Local Government, this month completed, with a visit to Canterbury Cathedral, a year-
long tour of England’s 42 cathedrals, which he began last October.   
 
Throughout his tour, Lord Bourne noted that he had found many faith communities 
working in partnership. Just some examples were: Peterborough Cathedral, which has 
been working collaboratively with Peterborough Interfaith Council; Liverpool Metropolitan 
Catholic Cathedral’s engagement with Inter Faith Week, hosting part of a faith tour of Edge 
Hill University students; and Coventry Cathedral, which hosted a Big Iftar in 2016.  The 
Minister also met faith leaders of Manchester in the city’s Cathedral following the terrorist 
attack earlier this year. The Cathedral has been a key place where different communities 
and faiths have met to discuss how to move forward together as part of the process of 
response and healing. 

Page 81

mailto:evidence@commissiononre.org.uk
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Commission-on-Religious-Education-Interim-Report-2017.pdf
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Commission-on-Religious-Education-Interim-Report-2017.pdf
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Executive-Summary-FINAL.pdf
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/Executive-Summary-FINAL.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/lammy-review-final-report
http://www.edf.org.uk/our-policy-work/brexit-equality-and-human-rights/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 8 

 
Lord Bourne will shortly be starting a new tour of other faith community places of worship. 
If communities have suggestions for places to visit that are doing good inter faith work, 
particularly in rural areas, they can contact: philip.davies@communities.gsi.gov.uk. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
INTER FAITH NETWORK FOR THE UK NEWS 
 
 
Inter Faith Week  
 
Inter Faith Week 2017 will run from Sunday 12 to Sunday 19 November. 
 
• Inter Faith Week begins on Remembrance Sunday and run for 8 days, finishing on the 

following Sunday.  The overlap with Remembrance Sunday enables greater coming 
together of people of different faiths to remember at that time.   

 
• The map showing activities taking place is now live at www.interfaithweek.org/map 

and more activities are being added regularly. If you are organising an activity to mark 
the Week, you can add it to the map at www.interfaithweek.org/submit or send details 
to the IFN office.  

 
• A ‘2 months to go’ press release was circulated on 12 September, which included 

quotes of support from IFN’s Co-Chairs and Lord Bourne of Aberystwyth, Minister for 
Faith at DCLG (both repeated below). The press release can be found 
at  https://www.interfaithweek.org/resources/2-months-to-go-press-release  

 
• IFN’s Co-Chairs, Bishop Richard Atkinson and Jatinder Singh Birdi say: 
 
“Amid challenging times, the Week is a powerful opportunity to create and demonstrate 
friendship and solidarity and to continue to work towards a society rooted in shared values 
and cooperation. 
 
We invite you to hold an activity for the Week – large or small.   Be part of making new 
connections and friendships, learning about the faiths and beliefs of other people you share 
your daily life with, or volunteering with people of other faiths on a project to help your local 
community.” 
 
• Minister for Faith Lord Bourne said: 
 
“In recent months we have seen how faith communities have come together to offer help to 
people caught up in appalling incidents and tragedies – literally throwing open their doors to 
offer sanctuary. They have been superb. 
 

Page 82

mailto:philip.davies@communities.gsi.gov.uk
http://www.interfaithweek.org/map
http://www.interfaithweek.org/submit
https://www.interfaithweek.org/resources/2-months-to-go-press-release


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 9 

“Inter Faith Week gives us an opportunity to celebrate the contribution that faith 
communities make and show how that can be strengthened by working together.” 
 
• The Inter Faith Week Toolkit provides ideas for activities. It can be found at:  

www.interfaithweek.org/resources/toolkit.  
 
• You can connect with the Week on Twitter at www.twitter.com/IFWeek or on Facebook 

at www.facebook.com/IFWeek.  IFN will again be using the hashtags #IFWeek and 
#InterFaithWeek across all social platforms it is using. Tagging our accounts and using 
the hashtags helps us to find and share what you are doing. 

 
• The homepage of the Inter Faith Week website has been updated to include an image of 

two of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum members – Julie Jones of the Inter-faith Council 
for Wales and Smita Oza of BAPS Swaminarayan Sanstha – holding a card with a 
message about the Week. The IFN office has produced a series of these and will be 
posting them on Twitter and Instagram (www.instagram.com/ifweek) in the run-up to 
the Week. If you would like to join in, print-at-home cards will be available on the 
website soon. 

 
• Flyers about Inter Faith Week can be downloaded from www.interfaithweek.org/flyer.  If 

you are holding an activity, or would like to raise awareness of the Week, please contact 
us and ask for some flyers and we will be happy to post some to you! 

 
Scottish Interfaith Week will also run from Sunday 12 to Sunday 19 November. More 
details under Special Weeks/Days.  
 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Meeting of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum 

 
A meeting of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum was held on 5 September.   On the Agenda 
were:  

• current issues of interest or concern to faith communities, including in particular UK 
inter faith relations and terrorism and extremism and the need for responsible 
journalism which avoids compounding or stirring up prejudice;  

• emergency planning, response and recovery and faith communities, with a short 
reflection from Major Alan Dixon of Churches Together in Britain and Ireland on 
bases within the Christian tradition for coming to the aid of those affected by 
emergencies and disasters and presentations from Mr Max Brodie, Community 
Resilience Lead, Civil Contingencies Secretariat, Cabinet Office and Dr Jo Gillespie, 
Head of Resilience (North) and Recovery, Resilience and Emergencies Division, 
Department for Communities and Local Government;  

• the Inter faith engagement of faith communities;  
• Inter Faith Week;  

Page 83

http://www.interfaithweek.org/resources/toolkit
http://www.twitter.com/IFWeek
http://www.facebook.com/IFWeek
http://www.instagram.com/ifweek
http://www.interfaithweek.org/flyer


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 10 

• inter faith work with young people and the update of IFN’s Connect guide, with a 
short presentation by Ashley Beck; and  

• preliminary discussion on ways in which the work of the FCF can be highlighted and 
that the FCF can best contribute to the overall engagement of faith communities in 
public life.  

Back to the top 
 
 
Arts and culture profiles 
 
In August-September IFN published a series of Facebook profiles on the theme of ‘Arts, 
culture and inter faith encounter’.   These highlighted recent examples of the work of 
member bodies that have used arts and culture to help people develop inter faith 
understanding and cooperation, and to engage with one another.   The profiles can be 
seen at www.facebook.com/IFNetUK.  
 
Scottish Interfaith Week (SIW) this year has as its theme ‘Creativity and the Arts’.  More 
about SIW is at http://scottishinterfaithweek.org/. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Day event for local inter faith practitioners 
 
In October IFN will be holding a day event in Manchester for local inter faith practitioners 
from inter faith groups across the UK to share their experiences, discuss issues of common 
interest and concern and have focused learning opportunities about practical aspects of 
developing successful inter faith programmes. 
 
Reports on previous day events for local inter faith practitioners held in Bristol, Coventry, 
London and Sheffield can be found at http://www.interfaith.org.uk/publications/all-
publications/all-publications.   
 
For further information, email ifnet@interfaith.org.uk.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
INTER FAITH PROJECTS, PROGRAMMES AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief: The Leicester Approach 
 
Trade Sexual Health and the St Philip’s Centre Leicester have concluded a year-long 
project: ‘Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief: The Leicester Approach’.   The project, 
launched in November 2016, explored the intersection between faith and issues of 
sexuality and gender identity, and aimed to bring individuals and communities together to 
discuss these subjects and build bridges.  Several shared conversations have taken place, 

Page 84

http://www.facebook.com/IFNetUK
http://scottishinterfaithweek.org/
https://mailgate.interfaith.org.uk/owa/redir.aspx?C=ZgXXSk_KuUC4eLtFAmQEFVfYd7hNpNMIICAl9o_LFngf89ekoSyuJxVslwDQL6LmoLHLth_9A5Y.&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.interfaith.org.uk%2fpublications%2fall-publications%2fall-publications
https://mailgate.interfaith.org.uk/owa/redir.aspx?C=ZgXXSk_KuUC4eLtFAmQEFVfYd7hNpNMIICAl9o_LFngf89ekoSyuJxVslwDQL6LmoLHLth_9A5Y.&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.interfaith.org.uk%2fpublications%2fall-publications%2fall-publications
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 11 

along with one-to-one conversation with faith leaders from a range of faith communities 
in Leicester.   The project culminated in the launch of a guidance document, on which 
there is more below in the Resources section.  
 
The project hopes to be a platform for further work in this area. For more information, visit 
www.tradesexualhealth.com/ or email info@tradesexualhealth.com.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Interfaith Scotland Rwanda exchange and youth programme 

 
Interfaith Scotland has been working in partnership with the Church of Scotland on a 
Muslim/Christian youth exchange to Rwanda.  In September five young Muslim and five 
young Christians along with four Church of Scotland and Interfaith Scotland leaders 
travelled to Rwanda to engage with young Rwandan Christians and Muslims.  A full 
programme of inter faith learning took place and the young participants are now back in 
Scotland where they are continuing their inter faith dialogue work over the next 
year.  2018 is the Year of Young People in Scotland and so there are many opportunities for 
inter faith engagement for young people.  The Rwandan participants will be undertaking 
many engagements including; 

• In October 2017 engaging with Scotland's Religious Leaders Forum, sharing with 
the Leaders what they learnt from their trip 

• In November 2017 they will assist with the launch of Scottish Interfaith Week, host 
an event at the Al Maktoum Institute in Dundee and speak to 20 European Youth 
workers on a learning exchange to Scotland 

• In January 2018 at the Holocaust Memorial National Scottish event, two of the 
young people will share their experience of visiting the Rwandan Genocide 
Museum  

• In April 2018 they will assist with the organisation of, and will speak at, the National 
Interfaith Youth Conference taking place in St Andrews.  This conference is co-
organised by Interfaith Scotland and the St. Andrews Co-existence team of young 
people. 

• In May 2018 they will speak at the Church of Scotland Youth Assembly 
 
Many other engagements are planned and the above is just a flavour of what these young 
people have committed to for the Year of Young People and in commitment to inter faith 
dialogue and engagement. 

Back to the top 
 

 
Inter faith charity shop at Selfridges 
 
Selfridges department store in London is hosting an inter faith charity shop in its store 
until 22 October as part of a commission by arts organisation Artangel.   The shop is run 
and staffed jointly by four religious charities chosen by the artist, Miranda July.  The 

Page 85

http://www.tradesexualhealth.com/
mailto:info@tradesexualhealth.com


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 12 

charities are Islamic Relief, Jewish charity Norwood, the London Buddhist Centre and the 
Spitalfields Crypt Trust.   The proceeds will be shared equally between the four partners, 
all of whom run their own charity shops.  Items for sale are typical of those traditionally 
sold in charity shops at charity prices.  More information is at 
https://thebuddhistcentre.com/londonbuddhistcentre/london-buddhist-centre-part-new-
artwork-miranda-july-and-artangel-which-takes.  

Back to the top 
 
 
Local authorities and local faith communities 
 
The relationship between local authorities and local faith communities is an important 
one.  A number have been exploring and agreeing new methods of joint working, in some 
cases using the term Faith Covenants. The idea of a ‘Faith Covenant’ was  the fruit of the 
All Party Parliamentary Group on Social Action and Faith Action.  These ‘covenants’ are 
designed to enable a joint commitment between faith communities and local authorities 
based on a set of principles that guide engagement, aiming to remove some of the 
mistrust that exists and to promote open, practical working on all levels.  More 
information about faith covenants is at http://www.faithandsociety.org/covenant/.  
 
This month Blackpool Council together with key faith leaders across the town met to sign 
up to a new partnership framework.   The idea is to work to promote better partnership 
between the Council and Faith groups. The process has been led by Together Lancashire, 
which has coordinated initiatives to map the extensive day to day work that local faith 
groups do to help serve need in their communities.  A copy of the partnership agreement 
can be seen at http://www.faithandsociety.org/wp-content/uploads/blackpool-faith-
partnership-agreement.pdf.  
 
A proposal for Basildon to sign up to the Essex Faith Covenant signed by Essex County 
Council last year can be seen at http://www.echo-
news.co.uk/news/local_news/15515492.Different_faith_groups_to_work_together_to_red
uce_isolation/. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
RESOURCES AND STUDY/TRAINING 
 
 
Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief – Guidance for faith communities 
 
To conclude a year-long project (see above), Trade Sexual Health and the St Philip’s 
Centre Leicester have launched Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief: The Leicester 
Approach – Guidance for faith communities.   The guidance document explores issues 
surrounding issues of faith, sexuality and gender identity and can be used by faith 
communities, LGB&T organisations and others to discuss explore and action how to make 

Page 86

https://thebuddhistcentre.com/londonbuddhistcentre/london-buddhist-centre-part-new-artwork-miranda-july-and-artangel-which-takes
https://thebuddhistcentre.com/londonbuddhistcentre/london-buddhist-centre-part-new-artwork-miranda-july-and-artangel-which-takes
http://www.faithandsociety.org/covenant/
http://www.faithandsociety.org/wp-content/uploads/blackpool-faith-partnership-agreement.pdf
http://www.faithandsociety.org/wp-content/uploads/blackpool-faith-partnership-agreement.pdf
http://www.echo-news.co.uk/news/local_news/15515492.Different_faith_groups_to_work_together_to_reduce_isolation/
http://www.echo-news.co.uk/news/local_news/15515492.Different_faith_groups_to_work_together_to_reduce_isolation/
http://www.echo-news.co.uk/news/local_news/15515492.Different_faith_groups_to_work_together_to_reduce_isolation/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 13 

communities, groups and places of worship more LGB&T inclusive. The guidance also 
contains case studies and links to resources for LGB&T organisations, as well as support 
organisations from a variety of faith communities.  The document can be downloaded at 
www.tradesexualhealth.com/.  
 

Back to the top 
 
Local resources 
 
Three new resources have been added to the IFN website at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/local-1.  These are part of a series of planned 
items looking at different themes in inter faith engagement.  They are primarily focussed 
on local activity, but some will be of interest more widely.  
 
The first three are 1) Inter faith engagement in social action; 2) Standing together; and 3) 
Local inter faith organisations and schools. If you have any suggestions for future themes 
that might form part of this series, please email these to ifnet@interfaith.org.uk. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Report on IFN day event for local inter faith practitioners 
 
In March IFN held a day event in Bristol for local inter faith practitioners across the UK to 
share their experiences, discuss issues of common interest and concern and have focused 
learning opportunities about practical aspects of developing successful inter faith 
programmes.  The report of the day will be available shortly at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/publications.  

Back to the top 
 
 
 
Looking After One Another: The Safety and Security of our Faith Communities 
 
As previously reported, earlier this year IFN published Looking after one another: the safety 
and security of our faith communities in partnership with the Department for Communities 
and Local Government, the Home Office, the Crown Prosecution Service, the National Fire 
Chiefs’ Council and the National Police Chiefs’ Council.   
 
Looking After One Another gives guidance on: 

• responding jointly to attacks on places of worship;  
• working for calm at times of tension; and  
• working to build on and strengthen existing good inter faith relations.   

 
and contains material about: 

• how and where to report hate incidents, cyber attacks, and actual or suspected 
terrorist activity;  

Page 87

http://www.tradesexualhealth.com/
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/local-1
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/publications


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 14 

• where to find information on strengthening the security of buildings;  
• and where to find information about working to build – and strengthen – good 

inter faith relations locally.    
These practical pointers for responding in solidarity have particular resonance at the 
present time when there is a need to watch out for the wellbeing of any groups who may 
be targeted because of terrorist actions which claim, or are perceived by some, as having a 
link to them.  
 
The document can be found at: https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/looking-after-
one-another-the-safety-and-security-of-our-faith-communities-2017. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Let’s Talk: Practical pointers for inter faith dialogue  
 
Earlier this year IFN published a resource on dialogue: Let’s Talk: Practical pointers for inter 
faith dialogue.  This is available to download at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/publications. The resource draws on existing IFN 
materials and contributions from member bodies to provide tips and ideas for productive 
dialogue and conversation between people of different faiths and beliefs in a range of 
different contexts.  Hard copies can be supplied by the IFN office.  If you would like a copy, 
contact ifnet@interfaith.org.uk. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Festival dates 
 
September has been a month with many key festivals.  October will be similarly rich in 
festivals.   
 
IFN carries a list of festivals on its website at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/religious-festivals which are included in the form 
kindly provided by the Shap Working Party on World Religions in Education whose 
calendar can be purchased from http://www.shapworkingparty.org.uk/calendar.html. 
 
IFN’s short guidance note, produced in consultation with its Faith Communities Forum, on 
which of their religious festivals faith communities would appreciate receiving greetings 
from people of other faiths and beliefs, and suggested forms of greeting can be found at 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/faith-festivals-guidance-on-sending-greetings-
2017.  

Back to the top 
 
 
 
 

Page 88

https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/looking-after-one-another-the-safety-and-security-of-our-faith-communities-2017
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/looking-after-one-another-the-safety-and-security-of-our-faith-communities-2017
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/publications
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/religious-festivals
http://www.shapworkingparty.org.uk/calendar.html
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/faith-festivals-guidance-on-sending-greetings-2017
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/resources/faith-festivals-guidance-on-sending-greetings-2017


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 15 

St Ethelburga’s Young leaders programmes 
 
The St Ethelburga’s Centre in London is currently recruiting for two programmes for young 
adults.     
 
The Spiritual Ecology programme brings together “the next generation of leaders who will 
build a future rooted in interconnectedness, stewardship and reverence for nature”.   It is 
open to 20-32 year olds and is an 8 month programme during 2018 including retreats and 
workshops.  The programme is fully funded so participants only pay travel costs.  The 
closing date for applications is 31 October.  For further information, including how to 
apply, visit https://stethelburgas.org/projects/spiritual-ecology/. 
 
Interfaith Activists is a 6 month leadership programme, beginning in November, designed 
to offer young people an opportunity “to explore alternative solutions to global issues, 
engage their own faith community and grow resilience and leadership skills for turbulent 
times”.  This programme draws on the philosophy of sacred activism – “a non-
oppositional movement for societal change rooted in prayer and a worldview of 
interdependence”.   It is open to 18-36 year olds and runs on weekend dates.  For further 
information, including how to apply, visit https://stethelburgas.org/projects/interfaith-
activists-leadership-turbulent-times/. 

Back to the top 
 
 
London Inter Faith Centre course 
 
The London Inter Faith Centre is running a six week course from 4 October on ‘Religion and 
the Nation’.   The course, being held on Wednesday afternoons, will look at how religion is 
affecting politics and society in the UK today.   For further information, contact 
laurence.hillel@londoninterfaith.org.uk.  
 

Back to the top 
 

 
Sion Centre for Dialogue and Encounter course 
 
The Sion Centre for Dialogue and Encounter is running a 3 day course on ‘Belief and 
Unbelief’.   The 3 study days will be on ‘Secularisation’ (10 October), ‘The Assault on 
Tradition’ (24 October) and ‘Religion and Science’ (7 November).  The course will be led by 
Jonathan Gorsky, Lecturer in Jewish Studies at Heythrop College.   For further information, 
email sioncentrefordialogue@gmail.com.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
 
 

Page 89

https://stethelburgas.org/projects/spiritual-ecology/
https://stethelburgas.org/projects/interfaith-activists-leadership-turbulent-times/
https://stethelburgas.org/projects/interfaith-activists-leadership-turbulent-times/
mailto:laurence.hillel@londoninterfaith.org.uk
mailto:sioncentrefordialogue@gmail.com


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 16 

CALLS FOR INFORMATION, COMPETITIONS, AND NOMINATIONS  
 
 
Faith communities’ work on Sustainable Development Goals 
 
The United Society Partners in the Gospel is carrying out a survey into how faith 
communities are already addressing the Sustainable Development Goals agreed by the 
United Nations (https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/?menu=1300).   They would be 
pleased to hear from as many faith communities as possible.   The survey can be found at 
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/RC6ZY33. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Faith recognition and celebration 
 
In November 3FF, with the support of Her Majesty’s Lord-Lieutenant of Greater London’s 
Council on Faith, will be holding an event to recognise the good work of faith communities 
building bridges in London.   During the event 3FF will recognise projects with small 
monetary rewards.    Nominees should be based in Greater London and should be involved 
in initiatives which seek to increase a sense of belonging across London’s diverse 
communities, particularly the marginalised communities, and/or; Nominees should work 
with groups from different faiths or none to build bridges and impact on increasing life 
chances or wellbeing.   The nomination deadline has now been extended to 9 October.  For 
further information, visit http://www.3ff.org.uk/celebration or contact Jess Hazrati at 
councilonfaith@3ff.org.uk.  

Back to the top 
 
 
 
Involvement of faith communities in World War One and Remembrance Sunday  
 
It is planned to prepare some materials about faith communities’ involvement in World 
War One and in Remembrance Sunday.   IFN would welcome information about relevant 
materials.   Please send to zac.lloyd@interfaith.org.uk with ‘WW1 and Remembrance’ in 
the subject line. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Inter faith sports projects 
 
If you have examples of a project or event involving sport which has taken place within the 
last two years or is ongoing we would love to hear from you.  Examples of inter faith 
projects involving sport can be emailed to  ifnet@interfaith.org.uk  Please mark these 
‘inter faith and sport’ in the subject line. 

Page 90

https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/?menu=1300
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/RC6ZY33
http://www.3ff.org.uk/celebration
mailto:councilonfaith@3ff.org.uk
mailto:zac.lloyd@interfaith.org.uk
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 17 

Back to the top 
 
 
 
Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service – changes to Courts in England and Wales 
 
Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Services (HMCTS) is holding a Public Community Event 
that will take place on the 2nd November 2017, at Ministry of Justice, 102 Petty France, 
London SW1P 9AJ. The event is 10am – 1pm (registration from 9.30am). 
 
The event will give participants an overview of progress made so far in reforming the court 
system. There will be an opportunity to test both HMCTS newest services and view those 
under development as well as a discussion on the Government’s plans for the future. 
 
HMCTS is keen to hear from faith communities.   If you are interested in attending the 
Public Community Event or would like further information, please contact 
nicola.kefford@Justice.gov.uk. 
 

Back to the top 
 
  
 
JOBS, INTERNSHIPS AND VOLUNTEERING 
 
IFN’s website lists job and internship opportunities with a significant inter faith dimension 
with IFN member organisations at https://www.interfaith.org.uk/involved/vacancies/jobs.  
 
 
Inter Faith Network for the UK – Clerical Assistant 
 
Each year the Inter Faith Network for the UK employs a Clerical Assistant for 8 hours per 
week to assist with office administration.   The role is flexible and ideally fits around 
university studies.   The closing date for this year’s applications is 3 October.  For an 
application form, contact ifnet@interfaith.org.uk.  
 

Back to the top 
 
Woolf Institute – Alumni and Support Relations Manager 
 
The Woolf Institute, which has this month moved into new purpose built premises, 
combines teaching, scholarship and outreach, focussing on Jews, Christians and Muslims, 
to build tolerance and foster understanding between people of different beliefs around 
the world.    It is currently seeking an Alumni and Support Relations Manager.  The role is 
full time and based in Cambridge.   For further information, the job description and how to 
apply, visit http://www.woolf.cam.ac.uk/news/detail.asp?ItemID=1235. 

Back to the top 

Page 91

mailto:nicola.kefford@Justice.gov.uk
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/involved/vacancies/jobs
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk
http://www.woolf.cam.ac.uk/news/detail.asp?ItemID=1235


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 18 

 
 
Home Office – Lead Commissioner for Countering Extremism 
 
The Commission for Counter Extremism, for which the Home Office has lead responsibility, 
is seeking a Lead Commissioner.   
 
The Lead Commissioner will “be an independent voice on countering extremism and 
promoting British values. Where issues of integration arise, the Commissioner will engage 
with the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, and will have the 
opportunity to discuss findings that may benefit the wider integration agenda. S/he will 
work with a diverse group of commissioners with expertise across the public sector, law 
enforcement, online industry, civil society, faith, and equality and integration issues, 
among others.”  The role is part time up to 3 days per week, based in London, with UK 
travel.   It is a fixed term appointment for 3 years.  The closing date for applications is 15 
October.  For further information, visit 
https://publicappointments.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/appointment/lead-commissioner-
countering-extremism/.  
 

Back to the top 
 
3FF roles 
 
3FF is seeking to recruit to three roles: 
Programme Lead – Workplace and Community Learning and Development 
A full time role based in London.  Closing time for application is 9am on 16 October.  More 
information is at http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/3ff-programmes-coordinator-workplace-
community/. 
Finance Manager 
A full time role based in London.  Closing time for application is 9am on 30 October.  More 
information is at http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/finance-manager/. 
Programme Officer, Schools (West Midlands) 
Full time, home based with travel to London and around the West Midlands.  Closing time 
for application is 9am on 6 November.  More information is at 
http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/programme-officer-schools-west-midlands/. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Heritage Lottery Fund – Committee members 
 
The Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) is looking for people to join its committee to help make 
decisions on where to invest funds from the National Lottery.     HLF is particularly keen to 
reach out to as many communities as possible and to draw on expertise from many 
cultural backgrounds.   It currently has vacancies for the London and South East England 
committees.   Applicants need to have a good knowledge of the region to which they are 

Page 92

https://publicappointments.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/appointment/lead-commissioner-countering-extremism/
https://publicappointments.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/appointment/lead-commissioner-countering-extremism/
http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/3ff-programmes-coordinator-workplace-community/
http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/3ff-programmes-coordinator-workplace-community/
http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/finance-manager/
http://www.3ff.org.uk/blog/programme-officer-schools-west-midlands/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 19 

applying.   The closing date for applications is 9 October.   For further information, visit 
https://forms.hlf.org.uk/applications/HLFCommittees_PublicPortal.ofml.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
Inter Faith Network for the UK - Volunteers and interns 
 
The Inter Faith Network for the UK has regular volunteering opportunities and occasional 
internships.  Further information about these can be found on IFN’s website. 
 

Back to the top 
 
 
FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES 
 
 
Near Neighbours grants programme 
 
The Near Neighbours grants programme, administered by the Church Urban Fund, 
offers small grants of between £250 and £5,000, as seed funding for local groups and 
organisations working to bring together neighbours, and to develop relationships across 
diverse faiths and ethnicities to improve their communities.  
 
As part of the criteria, projects should: 

• Bring together peoples of two or more different faiths and/or ethnicities, to build 
friendships and develop relationships of trust. 

• Work locally. We want to see people who are living very locally (ie in the same 
street, estate or neighbourhood) come together. 

• Work sustainably. We want to see long term and natural relationships grow, that 
will last beyond the period of funding.  

• Work to improve the community. We want to see people working to  
make their communities a better place to live.  

• Involve diverse people in planning and implementation. People from more than 
one faith group and/or ethnicity are involved in planning and implementing the 
proposal. 

 
The closing date for applications is 17 November.   The full criteria, information on areas in 
which the grants are available and information on how to apply can be found at 
https://www.cuf.org.uk/near-neighbours-small-grants.    For general enquiries, contact 
near.neighbours@cuf.org.uk.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
 

Page 93

https://forms.hlf.org.uk/applications/HLFCommittees_PublicPortal.ofml
http://www.cuf.org.uk/near-neighbours
https://www.cuf.org.uk/near-neighbours-small-grants
mailto:near.neighbours@cuf.org.uk


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 20 

Building a Stronger Britain Together programme 
 
The Home Office programme Building a Stronger Britain Together is continuing to offer in-
kind support such as social media training, technical assistance to help a group improve 
their website, or capacity building work to help a group protect more vulnerable 
individuals.   It is open to bodies in England and Wales.  Further information can be found 
at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/building-a-stronger-britain-together.  

 
Back to the top 

 
 
Faiths in Scotland Community Action Fund 
 
Faiths in Scotland Community Action Fund is open for applications to its new rolling small 
grants scheme.  Small grants of up to £750 are available to faith based anti -poverty 
projects with an annual turnover of £30,000 or less and can be applied for at any 
time.    For more information call Chris on 0141 221 4544 or visit 
https://www.faithincommunityscotland.org/faith-in-community-scotland-action-
fund/our-grants/smallgrants/.  
 

Back to the top 
 
Supermarket grant schemes 
 
Bags of Help is Tesco’s local community grant scheme where the money raised from the 
5p bag levy in Tesco stores is being used to fund community projects across the UK. The 
projects must meet the criteria of promoting community participation in the development 
and use of outdoor spaces.  Bags of Help is administered by Groundwork in England and 
Wales and supported in Scotland by Greenspace Scotland.   (It is not available in Northern 
Ireland where carrier bag money is managed centrally.)  Further information is at 
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/the-tesco-
bags-of-help-programme-tes2.  
 
Waitrose supports charities through its Community Matters scheme.   Local branches are 
each given £1,000 to share out between three local good causes each month such as 
welfare organisations, community groups and schools.   To apply, fill in a Community 
Matters form at a local branch or contact the branch champion for community giving at a 
local branch, using their branch finder tool at: 
http://www.waitrose.com/branches/index.aspx. 
 
Sainsbury’s stores each partner with a Local Charity of the Year voted on by the local 
people.   To apply, fill in a nomination form at your local store.  More information is at 
https://www.sainsburyslocalcharity.co.uk/.  
 

Page 94

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/building-a-stronger-britain-together
https://www.faithincommunityscotland.org/faith-in-community-scotland-action-fund/our-grants/smallgrants/
https://www.faithincommunityscotland.org/faith-in-community-scotland-action-fund/our-grants/smallgrants/
http://www.tesco.com/carrier-bags/
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/Pages/about-groundwork-tes
http://greenspacescotland.org.uk/
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/the-tesco-bags-of-help-programme-tes2
http://www.groundwork.org.uk/Sites/tescocommunityscheme/pages/Category/the-tesco-bags-of-help-programme-tes2
http://www.waitrose.com/branches/index.aspx
https://www.sainsburyslocalcharity.co.uk/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 21 

The Asda Foundation offers grants for local community projects which will “make a real 
long term difference, benefitting the wider community with [its] vision to ‘Transform 
Communities, improving lives locally.”  Further details are at  
https://www.asdafoundation.org/applying-for-funding/significant-local-community-
projects. 

Back to the top 
 
 
Aviva’s UK Community Fund 
 
Aviva has made around £1.7 million available for its 2017 Community Fund.  Funding is 
available to voluntary and community organisations for projects that will make a real 
difference to local residents.  The grants support all kinds of projects providing they are 
causes that the community really cares about and are charitable in nature.   Not-for-profit 
organisations and groups that are operating for the good of their local community and 
have been in existence for at least six months and have an income of £1 million or less can 
apply.  For further information, visit https://www.aviva.co.uk/good-thinking/community-
fund/ . 

Back to the top 
 
 
 
Comic Relief’s Core Strength Grants Programme 
 
This programme offers grants to help cover the day to day costs of small locally led and 
based voluntary and community sector groups that are doing ‘much needed’ work in their 
local communities.   Grants of between £1,000 and £5,000 or between £1,000 and £10,000 
(depending on the local community foundation) are to be used to support groups that can 
evidence a sustained beneficial impact on people’s lives who are excluded or 
disadvantaged.  For further information, visit http://www.comicrelief.com/apply-for-
grants/open-grants-initiatives/core-strength-local-communities.  
 
 

Back to the top 
 

Funding websites 
 
The National Council for Voluntary Organisations offers advice on fundraising and grants 
on its Knowhow Nonprofit site at https://knowhownonprofit.org/funding.  
 
Funding Central - http://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/default.aspx - is a free website for 
charities, voluntary organisations and social enterprises in England that provides access 
to thousands of funding and finance opportunities, together with tools and resources for 
supporting organisations to develop sustainable income strategies appropriate to their 
needs.  Similar websites for funding in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland can be found 

Page 95

https://www.asdafoundation.org/applying-for-funding/significant-local-community-projects
https://www.asdafoundation.org/applying-for-funding/significant-local-community-projects
http://hrballiance.us5.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=9215d2d845d06a9c2417f5c88&id=2bb2d74ee2&e=9426d4813d
http://hrballiance.us5.list-manage1.com/track/click?u=9215d2d845d06a9c2417f5c88&id=2bb2d74ee2&e=9426d4813d
http://www.comicrelief.com/apply-for-grants/open-grants-initiatives/core-strength-local-communities
http://www.comicrelief.com/apply-for-grants/open-grants-initiatives/core-strength-local-communities
https://knowhownonprofit.org/funding
http://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/default.aspx


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 22 

at Funding Scotland - http://www.fundingscotland.com/ - Wales Council for Voluntary 
Action - http://www.wcva.org.uk/funding/search - and Grant Tracker for Northern Ireland - 
https://www.grant-tracker.org/.  

Back to the top 

 

Heritage Lottery Fund grants to commemorate First World War 
 
The Heritage Lottery Fund has £4million of funding available for communities to get 
involved in projects marking the Centenary of the First World War.  Projects applying for 
funding must be able to meet one of a number of successful outcomes based on heritage, 
people and communities.   Grants can be given between £3,000 and £10,000.  There is no 
current deadline for applications as grants are considered on a monthly basis up to 2019. 

Further information can be found at https://www.hlf.org.uk/looking-funding/our-grant-
programmes/first-world-war-then-and-now.  
 

Back to the top 
 
Community foundations 
 
Community foundations are local, grant-making organisations to which local community 
organisations can apply for funding. There are 46 community foundations in the UK, 
covering Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland and most of England.    A map of community 
foundations across the UK and how to contact them, can be found at 
http://www.ukcommunityfoundations.org/our-network .  

Back to the top 
 
 
Transform Foundation 
 
The Transform Foundation is offering funding to charities to help with new website builds.  
Grants of £18,000 are available.  For further information and to apply, visit 
www.transformfoundation.org.uk. 

Back to the top 
 

 
Google, Microsoft and charities  
 
The internet search engine Google is offering a service to registered charities which brings: 
Google Ad Grants: Free AdWords advertising to promote your website on Google through 
keyword targeting; YouTube Nonprofit Programme: Access exclusive resources, features 
and programs designed to maximise your organisation's impact on YouTube; and Google 
Apps for Non-profit: Free version of the Google Apps business productivity suite, including 
Gmail, Docs, Calendar and more.  For further information, visit 
www.google.co.uk/intl/en/nonprofits/join.   

Page 96

http://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/Page.aspx?FH=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5mdW5kaW5nY2VudHJhbC5vcmcudWsvUGFnZS5hc3B4P0ZIPWFIUjBjRG92TDNkM2R5NW1kVzVrYVc1bmMyTnZkR3hoYm1RdVkyOXQ
http://www.fundingscotland.com/
http://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/Page.aspx?FH=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5mdW5kaW5nY2VudHJhbC5vcmcudWsvUGFnZS5hc3B4P0ZIPWFIUjBjRG92TDNkM2R5NTNZM1poTG05eVp5NTFheTltZFc1a2FXNW5MM05sWVhKamFB
http://www.wcva.org.uk/funding/search
http://www.fundingcentral.org.uk/Page.aspx?FH=aHR0cDovL3d3dy5mdW5kaW5nY2VudHJhbC5vcmcudWsvUGFnZS5hc3B4P0ZIPWFIUjBjSE02THk5M2QzY3VaM0poYm5RdGRISmhZMnRsY2k1dmNtY3Y
https://www.grant-tracker.org/
https://www.hlf.org.uk/looking-funding/our-grant-programmes/first-world-war-then-and-now
https://www.hlf.org.uk/looking-funding/our-grant-programmes/first-world-war-then-and-now
http://www.ukcommunityfoundations.org/our-network
http://www.transformfoundation.org.uk/
http://www.google.co.uk/intl/en/nonprofits/join


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 23 

 
Back to the top 

 
 
Subsidised fundraising workshops 
 
The Foundation for Social Improvement offers heavily subsidised training programmes for 
small charities across the UK.  The courses cover a wide range of subjects from event 
planning to leadership but the majority of their training courses are focused on helping 
charities learn the skills to raise and earn income.   Further information can be found at 
http://www.thefsi.org/services/training. 

 
Back to the top 

 
 
SPECIAL WEEKS/DAYS 
 
Sewa Day takes place on Sunday 1 October.   Sewa Day is an international faith-based day 
of social action rooted in the traditions of the Dharmic faiths.  Sewa Day projects will be 
taking place across the UK, including volunteering in old people’s homes, homeless 
shelters, schools in disadvantaged areas, hospitals and hospices, country parks, 
conservation areas and city farms – all with an aim of making a positive difference to 
individuals and communities.  For more information about Sewa Day, visit to 
www.sewaday.org/about-sewa-day/. To find out more about how to get involved, visit 
www.sewaday.org/get-involved/.  
 
National Hate Crime Awareness Week runs from 14 to 21 October.   The Week is 
organised by the ‘17-24-30 No To Hate Crime Campaign’ in partnership with Stop Hate UK.    
It aims to bring people together, to stand with those affected by hate crime, to remember 
those who have been lost, and support those who need ongoing support.   Further 
information can be found at https://www.nationalhcaw.uk/. 
 
Hate crimes are any crimes that are targeted at a person because of hostility or prejudice 
towards that person’s: 

• disability 
• race or ethnicity 
• religion or belief 
• sexual orientation 
• transgender identity 

This can be committed against a person or property. 
Hate crimes can be reported at http://www.report-it.org.uk/home.  
 
One World Week will take place from 22 to 29 October.  Its theme this year is ‘Good 
Neighbours: My world depends on us’.   One World Week seeks to raise people’s awareness 
and understanding of the injustices which cause poverty and conflict across the planet 

Page 97

http://www.thefsi.org/services/training
http://www.sewaday.org/about-sewa-day/
http://www.sewaday.org/get-involved/
https://www.nationalhcaw.uk/
http://www.report-it.org.uk/home


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 24 

and in local communities and threaten a bleak future for future 
generations. www.oneworldweek.org   
 
National Inter Faith Week in England, Wales and Northern Ireland will be an ‘8 day week’ 
this year taking place from 12 to 19 November.  www.interfaithweek.org  
See more above.   
 
Scottish Interfaith Week will take place from 12 to 19 November.  It is led by Interfaith 
Scotland. Its theme this year will be “Creativity and the Arts.” A new Scottish Interfaith 
Week website has been launched at http://scottishinterfaithweek.org/ and events in 
Scotland can be listed on this.  The Week in Scotland also has its own Twitter 
(https://twitter.com/FollowSIFW) and Facebook (https://www.facebook.com/FollowSIFW) 
and is using the hashtag #SIFW17. 
 
Mitzvah Day will take place on 19 November. It is an annual day of faith-based social 
action led by the Jewish community.  On Mitzvah Day, people give their time, not their 
money, to make a difference to the community around them.  Many events and projects 
held for the day have an inter faith focus.  www.mitzvahday.org.uk/ 
 
Holocaust Memorial Day will take place on 27 January.  Its theme in 2018 is The Power of 
Words: - Words can make a difference – both for good and evil.  Holocaust Memorial Day is 
a time for everyone to pause to remember the millions of people who have been murdered 
or whose lives have been changed beyond recognition during the Holocaust, Nazi 
Persecution and in subsequent genocides in Cambodia, Rwanda, Bosnia and Darfur.  It 
honours the survivors of these regimes and challenges everyone to use the lessons of their 
experience to inform their lives today. www.hmd.org.uk/  
 
The Muslim Council of Britain has announced that VisitMyMosque Day 2018 will take 
place on Sunday 18 February.  In 2017 over 150 mosques across the UK held open days to 
welcome in their neighbours from other communities.   Registrations are now open to take 
part in the 2018 event.  For further information, visit www.visitmymosque.org.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 

  

Page 98

http://www.oneworldweek.org/
http://www.interfaithweek.org/
http://scottishinterfaithweek.org/
https://twitter.com/FollowSIFW
https://www.facebook.com/FollowSIFW
http://www.mitzvahday.org.uk/
http://hmd.org.uk/genocides/holocaust
http://genocides/nazi-persecution
http://genocides/nazi-persecution
http://hmd.org.uk/genocides/cambodia
http://genocides/rwanda
http://hmd.org.uk/genocides/bosnia
http://hmd.org.uk/genocides/darfur
http://www.hmd.org.uk/
http://www.visitmymosque.org/


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 25 

 
 

 
SUPPORT THE INTER FAITH NETWORK’S WORK   

TO INCREASE INTER FAITH UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATION 
 

 
We need your help to ensure that the Inter Faith Network for the UK’s work to promote 
inter faith understanding and cooperation continues and grows, helping people of all 
backgrounds to live and work together with mutual respect and shared commitment to 
the common good.   
 
Gifts at all levels are much valued and make a real difference.  You can donate directly at 
www.interfaith.org.uk/donate or via PayPal or JustGiving at 
https://www.justgiving.com/interfaithnetwork-uk  
 
Donations can also be made by sending a cheque to The Inter Faith Network for the UK, 2 
Grosvenor Gardens, London SW1W 0DH. 
 
REMEMBERING A FAMILY MEMBER OR FRIEND  
If you would like to make a gift in memory of a loved one, please get in touch by emailing 
remember@interfaith.org.uk or call us on 0207 730 0410.  
 
A GIFT IN YOUR WILL  
By leaving a gift in your will to the Inter Faith Network for the UK, you can leave a living 
inheritance to help deepen and strengthen inter faith understanding and cooperation in 
this country – for now and for the future. If you are thinking about making a will, the best 
thing to do is to get in touch with a professional will writer, such as a solicitor or advocate; 
they can help to ensure it is legally correct and that your wishes are met. If you have 
already made a will, you can still make an addition or amendment in the form of a codicil. 
If you would like to pledge a gift, please provide our name and address, along with our 
registered charity number 1068934.  
 

 
Please get in touch with us if you have any queries.  

 
You can call us on 0207 730 0410 or contact us at remember@interfaith.org.uk  

 
 

Thank you!            
                                                           

 
Back to the top 

 
 
 

Page 99

http://www.interfaith.org.uk/donate
https://www.justgiving.com/interfaithnetwork-uk
mailto:remember@interfaith.org.uk
mailto:remember@interfaith.org.uk


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 26 

DIARY DATES 

This section includes some of the events taking place around the UK during from October 
to November.   We also include information on diary dates between e-bulletins on its 
website at http://www.interfaith.org.uk/take-part/events.  
 
The Open University is leading on an exhibition, entitled ‘At the Heart of the Nation’ 
which documents the diverse histories which make up the shared heritage of India and 
Britain from 1870, the earliest image in the exhibition, to the present day.   The images 
show the wide-ranging contributions that Indians from many faith backgrounds have long 
made to Britain’s cultural, economic, intellectual, political and social life.  The project is 
led by the Open University, in collaboration with the Indian High Commission, the Nehru 
Centre, and the University of Exeter.  It is in Edinburgh until 1 October; in London from 8 to 
15 October; and in Leeds from 16 to 26 October.  For further information, visit 
http://www.open.ac.uk/arts/research/asianbritain/india-britain.  
 
York Interfaith Group is holding an event on Tuesday 3 October.  It will begin with a ‘Bring 
and Share’ Meal with Music from 5.30pm to 7.30pm and will then be followed at 7.30pm by 
its Monthly Meeting, for which the theme is Conflict Resolution: the Place of the Faiths. It is 
being held from 5.30pm to 7.30pm at the York Medical Society Rooms, 23 Stonegate, York 
YO1 8AW.  For further information, contact yorkinterfaithgroup@gmail.com.  
 
St Ethelburga’s Centre for Reconciliation and Peace is holding a dialogue on the theme 
of ‘Hot Topics: Race and Faith’ on Tuesday 3 October from 6.30 to 9.30pm. This 
participatory evening dialogue creates a space for activists, scholars, policymakers and 
faith communities to engage questions of race and faith together. The event will be held at 
St Ethelburga’s Centre for Reconciliation and Peace, 78 Bishopsgate, London, EC2N 4AG. 
For further information, contact 020 7496 1610 or visit 
https://stethelburgas.org/event/race-faith-oct-2017/.  
 
Interfaith MK (Milton Keynes) is holding a lecture on the subject of ‘The Spirituality of 
Sufism, a way to create greater inclusiveness and harmony in society’ on Thursday 5 
October from 7.30pm to 9.30pm.  The speaker will be Mrs Sandra Ortiz.  The event is being 
held at St James Ecumenical Church, Church Street, New Bradwell, MK13 0DA.  For more 
information, email interfaithmk@gmail.com.  
 
Interfaith Glasgow, in partnership with St Mungo Museum of Religious Life and Art, is 
holding the second of a monthly dialogue series on the theme of ‘Faith to Faith’ on Sunday 
8 October from 2 to 4pm. The second dialogue is on the theme of ‘Reflections on Ahura’. 
The event will feature keynote speakers, dialogue and a question and answer session. The 
event will be held at St Mungo Museum of Religious Life and Art, 2 Castle Street, Glasgow, 
G4 0RH. For further information, contact development@interfaithglasgow.org.  
 
London Interfaith Centre is holding a talk on Monday 9 October by Dr Mike King entitled 
‘Why Secularism Matters for Peace in the Middle East’. The event will be held from 7.30pm 
to 9pm at St Anne’s and St Andrew’s Church, 125 Salusbury Road, London NW6 6RG.   

Page 100

http://www.interfaith.org.uk/take-part/events
http://www.open.ac.uk/arts/research/asianbritain/india-britain
mailto:yorkinterfaithgroup@gmail.com
javascript:void(0)
https://stethelburgas.org/event/race-faith-oct-2017/
mailto:interfaithmk@gmail.com
mailto:development@interfaithglasgow.org


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 27 

There is a charge to attend.  For more information, visit http://londoninterfaith.org.uk or 
contact Laurence Hillel at 07801 286819 or email laurence.hillel@londoninterfaith.org.uk.  
 
Nottingham Inter Faith Council is hosting a ‘Come Dine With Us’ dinner on Wednesday 11 
October at 7pm. The event will feature home-cooked food and opportunities for 
conversation with people of other faiths and cultures. The event is free of charge, but 
donations to the local food bank are welcome. The event is being held at Friends Meeting 
House, Clarendon Street, Nottingham, NG1 5JD. For further information, please email 
melgotheridge39@aol.com.  
 
Bridges for Communities and Darul Isra Mosque are holding their annual inter faith 
event on the theme of ‘Hear about Hajj’ on Thursday 12 October from 7pm to 9pm. The 
event is an opportunity to learn more about the Muslim pilgrimage of Hajj, and will include 
a short presentation and a shared meal, including the opportunity for attendees to talk 
and learn from one another. The event is being held at Grammen Juboraj, 195 Rochmond 
Road, Cardiff, CF24 3BT. There is a fee to attend.  For more information, and to book 
tickets, go to cardiff.carpediem.cd/events/4655474-hear-about-hajj-at-grameen-juboraj/.  
 
Newcastle Council of Faiths is holding its ‘Annual Walk for Peace’ on Sunday 15 October 
at 12.30pm. The Walk will visit the Hindu Temple, the Church of the Venerable Bede, the 
Central Mosque, the Sikh Gurdwara and the Synagogue. Prayers, refreshments and short 
talks will be offered along the way. Participants should meet at the Hindu Temple, West 
Road, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE4 9QB. For further information, contact Hari Shukla on 
01912433620 or Church House on 0191 2704100.  
 
Waltham Forest Faith Communities Forum is holding its Annual General Meeting on 
Monday 16 October from 6.45pm to 9pm. The meeting will report on the previous year, 
and will include contributions from a range of speakers on topics including marking Hate 
Crime Awareness Week. The meeting is being held in the Council Chamber at Waltham 
Forest Town Hall, Forest Road, Walthamstow, E17 4HF. For further information, email 
communications@faithcommunities.org.uk.  

 
Avon Council of Christians and Jews is holding an event on Monday 16 October on 
‘Gender and Faith: Women and the Church’.  There will be a talk by Carlotta Kramskoy, 
Interfaith Officer at Clifton Catholic Diocese, followed by a discussion.   It is being held at 
Bristol University Multi-faith Chaplaincy, 1 Woodland Road, Bristol, BS8 1AU, at 7.15pm for 
7.30pm.  All are welcome.  The event is free and contributions are welcome.  For more 
information, contact avonccj@gmail.com.  
 
The Inter Faith Network for the UK is holding a day event in Manchester on Tuesday 17 
October for local inter faith practitioners from inter faith groups across the UK to share 
their experiences, discuss issues of common interest and concern and have focused 
learning opportunities about practical aspects of developing successful inter faith 
programmes.  For further information, email ifnet@interfaith.org.uk.  
 

Page 101

http://londoninterfaith.org.uk/
mailto:laurence.hillel@londoninterfaith.org.uk
mailto:melgotheridge39@aol.com
http://cardiff.carpediem.cd/events/4655474-hear-about-hajj-at-grameen-juboraj/
mailto:communications@faithcommunities.org.uk
mailto:avonccj@gmail.com
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 28 

South East England Faiths Forum is holding its annual conference and AGM on Tuesday 
17 October on the theme of ‘Chaplaincy in a Plural Society: Faiths in Service’. The event 
will run from 9.30am to 5.00pm. The conference will feature speakers and workshops 
covering chaplaincy work in hospitals, in crisis, in education and the workplace from a 
variety of faith traditions. The conference will be held at Worth Abbey, Turners Hill, 
Crawley, RH10 4SB in the Performance Arts Centre. There is a registration fee which 
includes lunch.  To register, and for further information, contact Rabbi Wallach on 
07909506506 or at rabbiwallach@gmail.com.  
 
Interfaith Wolverhampton is holding a ‘Bring and Share’ lunch on Tuesday 17 October 
from 12.45pm to 2.00pm. The lunch will feature a presentation from Kamran Fazil on 
Faith-based environmental concerns. The lunch is being held at Darlington Street 
Methodist Centre, 24 School Street, WV1 4LF. For further information, contact 
admin@ifwton.org.uk.  
 
Interfaith Scotland, Faith in Older People, Edinburgh University Chaplaincy and 
Stonewall Scotland are holding a members dialogue event on Tuesday 17 October from 
10am to 4pm. The theme of the event is ‘Identity and Belonging’ and this will take the 
format of a civic café. For further information, contact Else Kek by email at 
else.kek@interfaithscotland.org.   
 
Building Bridges in Burnley is hosting an event on the theme of ‘Sacred Sounds from 
different faith traditions’ on Sunday 22 October from 2pm to 4pm. The event will feature 
performances from The Free Spiritual Centre Sufi Group, Fr Brian Keeley as well other 
individuals and choirs. The event is being held at Mezbaan Superstore, Colne Road, 
Burnley, BB10 1AS. For further information, email bea_foster@hotmail.com.  
 
The Multi-Faith Centre at the University of Derby is holding an event on the theme of 
‘Hinduism: Enlightenment through cause and change’ on Tuesday 24 October from 6pm to 
8pm. The event will explore growth and change in Hinduism. The speaker will be Vijay 
Hirani. Booking is required. The event is being held at The Multi-Faith Centre at the 
University of Derby, Kedleston Road, Derby, DE22 1GB. For further information, go to 
www.multifaithcentre.com.  
 
Religions for Peace (UK) is holding a seminar on Wednesday 25 October entitled 
‘Towards a world free of nuclear weapons – what faith communities can do next’.   The 
seminar is designed to provide the tools needed to talk to others in your faith community 
about the Nuclear Ban Treaty.  It is being held at 6.30pm at Friends House, 173-177 Euston 
Road, London NW1 2BJ.  For further information, contact 07825 189263.  To book a place, 
visit https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/nuclear-ban-treaty-what-next-tickets-37413008315.  
 
The Sion Centre for Dialogue and Encounter is holding an event on Thursday 2 
November entitled ‘Jewish Christian Relations: Significant New Beginnings’.   The event 
will mark the 70th Anniversary of the Seelisburg Conference of 1947 and explore its 
enduring legacy. It will take place from 11.00am to 3.15pm at the Sion Centre, 34 

Page 102

mailto:rabbiwallach@gmail.com
mailto:admin@ifwton.org.uk
mailto:else.kek@interfaithscotland.org
mailto:bea_foster@hotmail.com
http://www.multifaithcentre.com/
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/nuclear-ban-treaty-what-next-tickets-37413008315


 

Inter Faith Network e-bulletin September/October 2017 29 

Chepstow Villas, London, W11 2QZ. For further information, contact 
sioncentrefordialogue@gmail.com.   
 
York Interfaith Group is holding an event on Tuesday 7 November.  It will begin with a 
‘Bring and Share’ Meal with Music from 5.30pm to 7.30pm and will then be followed at 
7.30pm by its Monthly Meeting, for which the theme is Faith in the Armed Forces. It is being 
held from 5.30pm to 7.30pm at the York Medical Society Rooms, 23 Stonegate, York YO1 
8AW.  For further information, contact yorkinterfaithgroup@gmail.com.  
 
The Employers Network for Equality & Inclusion is holding an event on the theme of 
‘Pride & Prejudice: Faith and Sectarianism in Scotland’ on Wednesday 15 November from 
1pm to 3pm. The event will explore issues of demographics, hate crime and sectarianism 
in Scotland and will provide an opportunity for employers to network with others on these 
issues. The event is by invitation only.   It is being held in  Edinburgh. For further 
information, email info@enei.org.uk.  
 

Back to the top 
 
 
For more information on events and projects in Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales 
see: 
Northern Ireland Inter-Faith Forum:  www.niinterfaithforum.org 
Interfaith Scotland:  www.interfaithscotland.org 
Inter-faith Council for Wales:  www.interfaithwales.org.uk 

 

If you have items which you would like considered for inclusion in the next e-bulletin 
please email these to ifnet@interfaith.org.uk by 20 November with ‘e-bulletin’ in the 
subject line.  Submissions may be edited for length or style. 
 
 
Disclaimer: Information in this bulletin has been sourced and compiled with care.  IFN does not take 
responsibility for accuracy of information supplied by external organisations and inclusion of items within 
this e-bulletin does not imply endorsement or validation by IFN of the events, publications or the bodies 
which have produced these.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Inter Faith Network for the UK, 2 Grosvenor Gardens London SW1W 0DH 
www.interfaith.org.uk    www.facebook.com/IFNetUK    www.twitter.com/IFNetUK 

Registered charity no. 1068934   
Company limited by guarantee no. 3443823 registered in England 

Page 103

mailto:sioncentrefordialogue@gmail.com
mailto:yorkinterfaithgroup@gmail.com
mailto:info@enei.org.uk
http://www.niinterfaithforum.org/
http://www.interfaithscotland.org/
http://www.interfaithwales.org.uk/
mailto:ifnet@interfaith.org.uk?subject=e-bulletin
http://www.interfaith.org.uk/
http://www.facebook.com/IFNetUK
http://www.twitter.com/IFNetUK


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the last meeting (including Schedule of Meetings 2017-18)
	8 Membership Update (See Annual Report)
	9 SACRE Annual Report 2016-17
	11 Inspection Report Analysis:  Autumn 2016 - Summer 2017
	12 RE and the National Curriculum Update:  Welsh Government Newsletter
	15 WASACRE:
	16 Holocaust Memorial Day 2018
	Appendix 2

	17 Visits and Visitors
	18 Inter Faith Network Bulletin
	Contents
	Sections
	Items
	Faith and public life updates
	Inter Faith Week Read more
	Heritage Lottery Fund grants to commemorate the First World War Read more
	Special Weeks/Days
	Diary Dates
	FAITH AND PUBLIC LIFE UPDATES


	Responses to terrorist attacks
	Hate crime
	Bank of England decision on polymer bank notes
	National Association of Teachers of RE report expresses concern about state of RE
	Commission on Religious Education – Interim report
	Equalities updates
	Lord Bourne tour of places of worship
	INTER FAITH NETWORK FOR THE UK NEWS

	Inter Faith Week
	Meeting of IFN’s Faith Communities Forum
	Arts and culture profiles
	Day event for local inter faith practitioners
	Inter faith projects, programmes and developments

	Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief: The Leicester Approach
	Interfaith Scotland Rwanda exchange and youth programme
	Inter faith charity shop at Selfridges
	Local authorities and local faith communities
	Resources and STUDY/training

	Sexuality, Gender Identity and Belief – Guidance for faith communities
	Local resources
	Report on IFN day event for local inter faith practitioners
	Looking After One Another: The Safety and Security of our Faith Communities
	Let’s Talk: Practical pointers for inter faith dialogue
	Festival dates
	IFN’s short guidance note, produced in consultation with its Faith Communities Forum, on which of their religious festivals faith communities would appreciate receiving greetings from people of other faiths and beliefs, and suggested forms of greeting...
	St Ethelburga’s Young leaders programmes
	London Inter Faith Centre course
	Sion Centre for Dialogue and Encounter course
	CALLS FOR INFORMATION, COMPETITIONS, AND NOMINATIONS

	Faith communities’ work on Sustainable Development Goals
	Faith recognition and celebration
	Involvement of faith communities in World War One and Remembrance Sunday
	Inter faith sports projects
	Her Majesty’s Courts and Tribunal Service – changes to Courts in England and Wales
	JOBS, INTERNSHIPS AND VOLUNTEERING

	IFN’s website lists job and internship opportunities with a significant inter faith dimension with IFN member organisations at https://www.interfaith.org.uk/involved/vacancies/jobs.
	Inter Faith Network for the UK – Clerical Assistant
	Woolf Institute – Alumni and Support Relations Manager
	Home Office – Lead Commissioner for Countering Extremism
	3FF roles
	Heritage Lottery Fund – Committee members
	Inter Faith Network for the UK - Volunteers and interns
	FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

	Near Neighbours grants programme
	Building a Stronger Britain Together programme
	Faiths in Scotland Community Action Fund
	Supermarket grant schemes
	Aviva’s UK Community Fund
	Comic Relief’s Core Strength Grants Programme
	Funding websites
	Heritage Lottery Fund grants to commemorate First World War

	Community foundations
	Transform Foundation
	Google, Microsoft and charities
	Subsidised fundraising workshops
	SPECIAL WEEKS/DAYS
	National Hate Crime Awareness Week runs from 14 to 21 October.   The Week is organised by the ‘17-24-30 No To Hate Crime Campaign’ in partnership with Stop Hate UK.    It aims to bring people together, to stand with those affected by hate crime, to re...

	SUPPORT THE INTER FAITH NETWORK’S WORK
	TO INCREASE INTER FAITH UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATION
	We need your help to ensure that the Inter Faith Network for the UK’s work to promote inter faith understanding and cooperation continues and grows, helping people of all backgrounds to live and work together with mutual respect and shared commitment ...
	Gifts at all levels are much valued and make a real difference.  You can donate directly at www.interfaith.org.uk/donate or via PayPal or JustGiving at https://www.justgiving.com/interfaithnetwork-uk
	Donations can also be made by sending a cheque to The Inter Faith Network for the UK, 2 Grosvenor Gardens, London SW1W 0DH.
	REMEMBERING A FAMILY MEMBER OR FRIEND
	If you would like to make a gift in memory of a loved one, please get in touch by emailing remember@interfaith.org.uk or call us on 0207 730 0410.
	A GIFT IN YOUR WILL
	By leaving a gift in your will to the Inter Faith Network for the UK, you can leave a living inheritance to help deepen and strengthen inter faith understanding and cooperation in this country – for now and for the future. If you are thinking about ma...
	Please get in touch with us if you have any queries.
	You can call us on 0207 730 0410 or contact us at remember@interfaith.org.uk
	Thank you!
	Diary Dates

	For more information on events and projects in Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales see:


